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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREME

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Director(s)”) of Imagi International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries as the “Group”),
I would like to present the annual report of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year under Review”)
to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The past year had been a very difficult time for the Company.
The Company suffered a net loss after tax of approximately
HK$429 million. The losses was mainly attributable to: (i)
impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of
approximately HK$79 million; (ii) forfeiture of a deposit of
HK$150 million on the terminated acquisition of Smart Jump
Corporation; (iii) net losses resulted from changes in fair
value of financial assets classified as held-for-trading of
approximately HK$91 million which comprised of realised
and unrealised losses of approximately HK$19 million and
HK$72 million respectively; and (iv) approximately HK$64
million equity-settled share-based payment expense (non-
cash payment).

At the beginning of the Year under Review, there was an
absence of senior executive management of the Company
emanating from the prolong absence. The then executive
directors cumulated in the then independent and non-
executive directors putting out announcements dated 17
December 2015 and 29 December 2015 respectively to
inform the Shareholders and the public the vacuum of the
senior management, several highly questionable and
suspicious transactions undertaken by those executive
directors and removal of Mr. Shan Jiuliang as the chairman
of the Board. The new management of the Company were
appointed on 28 January 2016 and 2 February 2016 and
took over the reins of the Company in the midst of and
with the backdrop of great uncertainty caused by the
aforementioned.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The new management took a thorough review on the
Company’s existing businesses and assets. On the business
side, the new management noted that the then core business
of the Company, the computer graphic imaging (“CGI”)
business, was in the doldrums and unlikely to turn around
in the near terms. The Company had not been active in
that business for an extensive time prior to such review.
The new management concluded that for the CGI business,
the Company would stop devoting further resources for new
productions and only concentrate on the distribution side
of the intellectual properties on hand. With the above in
mind, the new management identified integrated financial
services business as an additional principal line of business
for the Company. The public was informed of the above
via a “Business Update” announced on 28 January 2016.

The Company’s management immediately began to
implement the aforementioned decision and the re-
deployment of resources accordingly. The management also
began an in-depth investigation on the questionable
transactions of the previous management and initiated
recovery actions when as appropriate.

(i) The disposal of the then existing assets

The new management began the process of realigning
the Company’s financial assets by liquidating the bond
portfolio and began the proprietary trading in equity
securities. The Company also disposed of its China-
related assets to limit the Company’s exposure to the
uncertainty relating to those questionable assets and
businesses. Finally the Company sold its property in
Wong Chuk Hang as it was no longer needed for its
originally intended purpose and thus became surplus
to requirement. The disposal together provided
approximately HK$245 million in proceeds and the
fund thus generated were re-deployed, by the
Company, for its financial services business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREME

(i)

The development in the integrated financial

service business

(a)

(b)

Securities investments and proprietary
trading

The Company, having once decided to expand
into the integrated financial services business,
initiated a proprietary trading operation in listed
securities. The Company devoted great efforts
in the continual recruitment of seasoned
professionals. Currently, the Group’s securities
trading and investment is being operated by
three executive Directors who together have
had over 30 years in the business as executive
directors of investment companies listed under
Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. The Company’s
proprietary trading, carried out principally
through the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary,
Unimagi Investment Limited, has already
become a significant portion of the Company
and the total value of its securities portfolio as
at 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$589 million.

Money lending business

The Company formed a joint venture company
(the “JV Company”), Imagination Holding
Limited, which offers money lending services
to clients. The JV Company is run by experienced
senior executives who have had many years of
prior experience working for financial institutes
including banks and licensed money-lenders.
The performance from this, while being for only
relatively short period, had been encouraging.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

(c) Brokerage services

On 30 August 2016, the Company announced
that it had entered into a conditional agreement
to purchase the entire issued shares of John
& Wong Securities Company Limited, a well-
established brokerage with a long history. The
acquisition required the approvals from both
the Shareholders as well as that of the Securities
and Futures Commission and completion took
place recently on 28 February 2017.

To fund the continual development of the Company, and in
particular, to build the financial services business, the
Company had undertaken a share swap, a share placement
as well as an open offer on the basis of one offer share
for two shares held (the “Open Offer”). The share swap and
share placement were general mandate placements. Those
general mandate placements together with the Open Offer
contributed a total proceeds of approximately HK$554
million to the Company in the form of both cash and assets.

PROSPECTS

As aforementioned, the past year had been a difficult year
for the Company. However, the Directors are confident that
the worst for the Company had passed.

Many of the negative factors that contributed to the
Company’s poor performance such as the costs of sorting
out the problem assets from the previous management and
the adjustment and teething costs that are associated with
the transition to and addition of a complete new line of
business, namely the financial services business, are largely
completed. While these had been costly, they never-the-less
had built a solid foundation and a perfect springboard for
us to develop the financial services business.

The Company’s money lending business, conducted via its
joint venture, Imagination Holding Limited, had been
progressing well. The Directors fully believe that this will
make significant positive contribution to the Company’s
financial performance beginning the coming year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREME

The Company’s development in securities brokerage services
had just started. The acquisition of John & Wong Securities
Company Limited announced on 30 August 2016 had been
completed after the Year under Review. The process of
amalgamation of its operation into the Company has been
initiated and further plans of the next phase of development
are rapidly being mapped out. Currently, the Company has
been recruiting high caliber candidates to expand the talent
pool for the Company in the provision of financial services.
For John & Wong Securities Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company had already submitted
the application for addition of licenses to conduct type 2,
4, 5 and 9 regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. The Company had also just entered into
a Strategic Alliance Memorandum with Enerchina Holdings
Limited which the Directors believe will allow the Company
to benefit from their experience and know-how to assist in
the Company’s efforts to develop a full securities-relating
service including brokerage, investment and corporate
advisories.

The Company had on 8 June 2016 announced its intention
to re-domicile from Bermuda to Hong Kong. In doing so,
the Company wanted to project a new corporate image to
its Shareholders and the investing public. The Company
believed that the move will re-affirm the Company’s
commitment to and recognition of its roots stemming from
Hong Kong. Furthermore this will allow the Company to
take advantage of and being better placed to expand its
financial services business into China through measures
such as CEPA. The re-domicile is progressing and the
Company looks forward to its implementation in 2017.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere
gratitude and appreciation to fellow Directors for their
support, and to thank all of our staff for their enthusiasm
and hard work. In addition, | would like to thank all of our
shareholders, business partners and bankers for their
continuous support over the years.

For and on behalf of the Board
Kitchell Osman Bin
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WD

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

For the Year under Review, the Group’s principal business
is to engage in investment business and integrated financial
services business, computer graphic imaging (“CGI”), cultural
and entertainment business.

The new management of the Company took over the reins
of the Company in the midst of great uncertainty caused
by the prolong absence of the then executive directors and
several questionable transactions undertaken also by those
executive directors. The new management immediately
began a thorough review on the Company’s existing
businesses and assets. On the business side, the new
management took the view that the then core business of
the Company, the CGl business was in the doldrums and
unlikely to turn around in the near terms. The new
management concluded that for the immediate future, for
the CGl business, the Company would stop devoting further
efforts and resources for new productions and will
concentrate exclusively on the distribution side. With the
above in mind, the new management searched for new
business lines to become additional core businesses for
the Company and had identified integrated financial services
business as an additional principal line of business for the
Company. The public was informed of the above via a
“Business Update” announced on 28 January 2016 and 16
March 2017. The Company’s management immediately
began to implement the aforementioned decision and the
re-deployment of resources accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Existing businesses and assets

With the appointment of the new management team,
the Company had begun an extensive review of its
existing businesses and assets. For CGl, cultural and
entertainment business, it has been determined that
it would no longer be profitable for the Company to
become engaged on the production side for this
business at this time. However the new management
remained committed to the distribution side of the
business and had conducted extensive review of
intellectual properties owned by the Company and
current or previous signed distribution agreements
and is negotiating with counter-parties on renewing
existing or establishing new distribution agreements.
As for the Company’s property in Wong Chuk Hang,
the Company, after reviewing its options, had decided
that it is no longer required for the Company’s CGI
business and the property is thus surplus to the
Company’s requirements. On 8 August 2016, the
Company had executed a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose the subsidiaries holding the
property section for a consideration in an amount of
HK$128 million and the disposal was completed on
12 October 2016.

As for the Company’s assets in China, after taking
into account of the lack of information and the legal
difficulties encountered in the Company’s effort in
recovering its money locked up there, the Company
had decided to disengage from its China subsidiaries
and completely disposed all of its operations there
during the Year under Review.

(i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

(i)

New business

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 28
January 2016, the Company has decided to expand
the range of its principal businesses to include that
of financial services comprising of provision of
securities brokerage services, placing and underwriting
services, corporate finance advisory services,
investment advisory and management services, margin
financing and money lending business, securities
investment and proprietary trading. The Company has
since commenced the development of these
businesses.

(a) Securities investments and proprietary
trading
The Company has commenced the securities
investments and proprietary trading business
in earnest with a total fair value of the portfolio
in listed securities of approximately HK$589
million as at 31 December 2016.

(b) Money lending business

The Company has formed a joint venture with
Bob May Incorporated (“BMI”) on 29 February
2016 pursuant to which the Company and BMI
agreed to carry out the business of provision
of finance and money lending through the
operation of the equal joint venture company
(the “JV Company”). The JV Company had since
acquired a company with a money lenders
licence and had commenced its business soon
thereafter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(c) Brokerage services

On 30 August 2016, the Company announced
that it had entered into a conditional agreement
to acquire John & Wong Securities Company
Limited (the “Target Company”), a corporate
licensed under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
(“SFQO”) to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities)
regulated activity). The Target Company
principally engaged in the business as dealer
in securities and trading in securities. This
represent the Company’s continual development
of its integrated financial services business and
the Target Company is intended to be used as
a flagship for the Company into other securities
related businesses such as fund management,
corporate finance advisory etc. The acquisition
was completed on 28 February 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of results

The net loss before tax for the Year under Review was
approximately HK$418 million compared to the net loss
before tax of approximately HK$81 million for the last year.
It was mainly due to losses from changes in fair value of
financial assets classified as held-for-trading of approximately
HK$91 million (2015: Nil), impairment loss on available-for-
sale investments of approximately HK$79 million (2015: Nil)
and recognition of HK$150 million forfeited deposit as a
result of termination of acquisition of a target company
engaging in the securities trading business.

BEEN WD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WD

On the expenditure side, administrative expenses significantly
increased by approximately HK$120 million or 857% from
approximately HK$14 million for the last financial year to
approximately HK$134 million for the Year under Review,
which was mainly due to the inclusion (i) the cost of trading
of securities of approximately HK$12 million (2015: Nil); (ii)
increase of legal and professional fee of HK$15 million or
300% from approximately HK$5 million for the last financial
year to approximately HK$20 million for the Year under
Review; (iii) increase of rent, rates and management fee of
HK$6 million or 300% from approximately HK$2 million for
the last financial year to approximately HK$8 million for the
Year under Review; (iv) increase of staff costs (excluding
equity-settled share-based payment expense) of HK$11
million or 367% from approximately HK$3 million for the
last financial year to approximately HK$14 million for the
Year under Review; (v) the recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment of approximately HK$64 million (2015:
Nil); and (vi) the net increase in other administrative expenses
of approximately HK$12 million. These increases were as
a result of expensing new businesses and in line with
operation of the Group as well as redomicile exercise
carrying out by the Company during the Year under Review.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily financed by its operation with internally
generated cash flows and fund raising exercises. The
liquidity and financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 remain healthy, with bank balance amounting
to HK$246 million (31 December 2015: HK$626 million) and
a current ratio (the total amount of current assets over the
total amount of current liabilities) of approximately 53 times
(2015: approximately 162 times).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no bank or other
borrowings and therefore the gearing ratio (expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings over total capital) was zero
(2015: zero).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 8 March 2016, pursuant to a share swap agreement
dated 29 February 2016 (the “Share Swap Agreement”)
entered into between the Company and Murtsa Capital
Management Limited (“Murtsa”, an independent third party),
1,900,000,000 new shares of the Company (the “Subscription
Share(s)”) were issued and allotted at a subscription price
of HK$0.09 per Subscription Share to the nominees of
Murtsa in exchange for 455,500,000 shares of HengTen
Networks Group Limited (stock code: 136) as consideration
shares at a price of HK$0.3754 each from Murtsa as full
payment of the consideration for the Shares issued under
the Share Swap Agreement (the “Share Swap”). The
aggregate subscription price of the Subscription Shares was
HK$171 million and the subscription shares were issued
under general mandate granted to the Directors by the
Shareholders at annual general meeting held on 16 June
2015, representing 20% of the issued share capital in the
Company as at 16 June 2015 and approximately 19.06%
of the issued share capital in the Company as at 29 February
2016. The Share Swap was completed on 8 March 2016
and Murtsa became a substantial Shareholder upon
completion. Details of the Share Swap was disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 February 2016.

During the Year under Review, the subscription rights
attaching to 765,000,000 share options were exercised at
subscription prices ranging from HK$0.0972 to HK$0.1018
per share of the Company (the “Share(s)”), resulting in issue
of a total of 765,000,000 Shares on 7 March 2016, 8 March
2016 and 9 March 2016 respectively for an aggregate
proceed of HK$76,644,000.

On 30 May 2016, an ordinary resolution to approve the
share consolidation was passed by the Shareholders at a
special general meeting of the Company whereby share
consolidation became effective on 31 May 2016 that every
five issued and unissued Share of HK$0.001 each be
consolidated into one consolidated Share of HK$0.005 each.
Details of the share consolidation was disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 3 May 2016 and 30 May
2016 and circular dated 13 May 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WD

On 30 June 2016, the Company placed 505,352,508 new
Shares to independent investors at a price of HK$0.23 per
placing share. The placing shares were issued under general
mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders at
an annual general meeting held on 2 June 2016, representing
approximately 20% of the issued share capital as at the
aforesaid annual general meeting and as at 30 June 2016.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$112.23 million were
originally intended used for partial repayment of the
promissory note issued by the Company with principal
amount of HK$225 million (“PN”) in favour of Unimagi
Investment Limited (“Unimagi”). As disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2016, the Board
has resolved to change the intended use of net proceeds
from placing and had applied the net proceeds for partial
settlement of the consideration for buy-back of shares of
Unimagi from joint venture partner. Details of the placing
was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8
June 2016.

On 26 August 2016, pursuant to an underwriting agreement
dated 4 July 2016 entered into between the Company and
an independent underwriter, the Company issued and
allotted 1,516,057,526 new Shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.185 per offer share to qualifying Shareholders by
way of open offer on the basis of one offer share for every
two Shares held on record date. The net proceeds from the
open offer was approximately HK$270.47 million of which
HK$225 million was used for repayment of PN and the
remaining HK$45.47 million for the replenishment of working
capital of the Company. The open offer was completed on
26 August 2016. Details of the open offer was disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 8 July 2016 and
prospectus dated 5 August 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the total number of issued shares
of the Company was 4,548,172,578 Shares with a par value
of HK$0.005 each. Based on the closing price of HK$0.15
per Share as at 31 December 2016, the market value of
the Company as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$682.23 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATES

Presently, most of the Group’s business transactions, assets
and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
United States dollar. The Group’s exposure to currency risk
is minimal as Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United States
dollar. The Group does not have any currency hedging policy
and has not entered into any hedging or other instrument
to reduce currency risks. However, the management will
closely monitor the Group’s exposure to the fluctuation of
exchange rates and take appropriate measures as necessary
to minimise any adverse impact that may be caused by
such fluctuation.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 7 March 2016, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose the entire issued shares of Imagi Jue Ming Limited
(together with its subsidiaries, namely Po Hau Holdings
Limited and Xiamen Sunflower Mingde Business Services
Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Sunflower”) collectively as the “Xiamen
Disposal Group”) which comprised of the Company’s entire
China-related businesses and assets, and assignment of
the shareholder’s loan amounting to HK$100 million at a
cash consideration of HK$25 million. The management had
taken into account the great uncertainty pertained in the
disposed assets and the amount, if any, that could eventually
be realised and recovered. The Directors believed that it
was better to dispose the assets thus limiting the exposure
and to use the resources thereby free up to more productive
use. The disposal was completed on 9 March 2016 and the
Xiamen Disposal Group was no longer subsidiaries of the
Company upon completion.

On 7 March 2016, the Company acquired entire issued
shares of Infinite Lake Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands and has 100% equity interest in High
Gear Holdings Limited, the legal and beneficial owner of a
yacht, at the consideration of HK$45 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WD

On 8 June 2016, the Company announced that it had formed
a company, Unimagi Investment Limited (“Unimagi” or “Joint
Venture Company”), with a joint venture partner (the “JV
Partner”) to engage in business of trading of Hong Kong
listed securities. The Joint Venture Company was to be
capitalised at HK$750 million with an initial subscribing
approximately 76.7% and 23.3% of shareholding of Joint
Venture Company at subscription price of HK$575 million
and HK$175 million from Dai Gor Capital Ltd. (“DGCL”, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and JV
Partner respectively. Subsequently on 30 June 2016, DGCL
and JV Partner entered into a shares buy-back agreement,
pursuant to which DGCL has agreed to buy back, and JV
Partner has agreed to sell the 175 shares of Unimagi (the
“Shares Buy-Back”) representing approximately 23.3% of
issued share capital of Unimagi at the original subscription
price of HK$175 million as a consideration for the Shares
Buy-Back. The Shares Buy-Back was completed on 4 July
2016 and Unimagi became an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on the completion date. Detailed
information regarding the joint venture arrangement and the
Shares Buy-Back was disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 8 June 2016, 30 June 2016 and 4
July 2016.

On 8 August 2016, Sky Field Holdings Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to which Sky Field Holdings
Limited has conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital of Cicero Capital Ltd., its direct wholly-owned
subsidiary, together with Imagi Services Limited (collectively
as the “Disposal Group”) at a total consideration of HK$128
million. Imagi Services Limited is the legal and beneficial
owner of a landed property situated at 9th Floor, Global
Trade Square, No. 21 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Hong Kong,
together with 3 car parking spaces at Global Trade Square.
The disposal was completed on 12 October 2016 and the
Disposal Group was no longer subsidiaries of the Company
upon completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year under Review (2015: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 19 employees
excluding directors (2015: 3 employees). The remuneration
policy of the Group is to reward its employees with reference
to their qualifications, experience and work performance as
well as to market benchmarks. Employee’s benefits include
medical insurance coverage, mandatory provident fund and
share option scheme. The total staff cost paid to Directors
and staff excluding equity-settled share-based payment for
the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$14 million (2015: HK$2.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

OTHER INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR
UNDER REVIEW AND UP TO THE DATE OF
THIS ANNUAL REPORT

U]

Potential continuing connected transaction

A tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) was
entered into on 1 August 2015 between EFIM=ES &l
BER SR LM AR AR (Xiamen Cross-Strait Financial
Assets Trading Centre Company Limited (“Xiamen Cross-
Strait”) English name for identification purpose only), a
company in which former Directors namely Mr. Shan
Jiuliang and Ms. Zhang Peng indirectly hold equity
interest of 35% and 51.83% respectively, as the lessor
and Xiamen Sunflower, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company at the time signing the
Tenancy Agreement, as the lessee. Under the Tenancy
Agreement, Xiamen Cross-Strait was to sublease a
property with a gross floor area of 1,400 square meters
to Xiamen Sunflower for a term of two years commencing
from 1 August 2015 to 31 July 2017 for a rent of
RMB2,688,000 per annum. On 10 August 2015, Xiamen
Sunflower paid to Xiamen Cross-Strait a total sum of
RMB6,000,000, representing two years’ rent paid in
advance and a deposit of RMB624,000 purportedly
under the Tenancy Agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

At the board meeting held on 15 October 2015 (the
“October Board Meeting”), Mr. Leung Pak To, a former
non-executive Director, and Mr. Chan Yuk Sang, Mr.
Cheng Yuk Wo and Dr. Lam Lee G., all of whom were
former independent non-executive Directors,
considered the level of annual rent payable by Xiamen
Sunflower and its current needs for office space and
took the view that: (a) the terms of Tenancy Agreement
are not fair and reasonable; and (b) the transaction
under the Tenancy Agreement is not on normal
commercial terms and not in the interests of the
Company or its shareholders as a whole. It was
resolved at the October Board Meeting that the
Tenancy Agreement be revoked and Mr. Shan agreed
to take steps to revoke the Tenancy Agreement. On
22 October 2015, the Company sent a draft agreement
to Mr. Shan confirming the invalidity of the Tenancy
Agreement (the “Confirmation Agreement”). However,
the Company has not received the signed Confirmation
Agreement despite numerous attempts to follow up
with Mr. Shan. The Company’s PRC legal adviser has
advised the Company the fact that (i) the Board other
than Mr. Shan was not aware of the Tenancy
Agreement at the time it was executed; and (ii) the
Board had not approved, authorised or ratified it, does
not invalidate the Tenancy Agreement. Xiamen
Sunflower ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
upon completion of disposal of Xiamen Disposal
Group on 9 March 2016. Details information regarding
the potential continuing connected transaction was
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 17
December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBHNWR DM

(i)

Financial information of Xiamen Sunflower

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 17 December 2015, since September 2015, the
Company has not been able to obtain monthly bank
statements of Xiamen Sunflower despite many rounds
of discussion between the Company and Mr. Shan
Jiuliang’s personal assistant who is not an employee
of the Group. The Company subsequent loss contact
with Mr. Shan since November 2015. Mr. Shan was
the legal representative of Xiamen Sunflower and is
the sole authorised signatory of Xiamen Sunflower’s
bank accounts. The Company has taken legal advice
from its PRC counsel on possible actions that the
Company might be able to take to obtain Xiamen
Sunflower’s bank statements. However, the Company
failed to obtain the bank statement after carried out
the suggested actions. Xiamen Sunflower was
disposed during the Year under Review (refer to
section of “Material Acquisition and Disposal of
Subsidiaries” above). Accordingly, during the Year
under Review, the Company has not been able to
provide the complete set of monthly update
consolidated management accounts of Xiamen
Disposal Group for the period from 1 January 2016
to the date of disposal on 9 March 2016. Details
information regarding Xiamen Sunflower’s bank
statement was disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 December 2015.
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(iii)

(iv)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Legal proceedings for the recovery of HK$10
million paid to a third party

On the instructions of Mr. Shan Jiuliang, an amount
of HK$10 million was extended by Po Hau Holdings
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, to an independent third party (the “Fund
Recipient”) on 6 August 2015. After preliminary
investigation conducted by the new management
team of the Company, the Board is of the view that
there is suspected element of fraud in the whole
transaction related to the fund advance. The Company
began legal proceedings to recover the amount of
HK$10 million so paid by the Fund Provider to the
Fund Recipient on the grounds of unjustified
enrichment emanating from a purported loan as
reported from the previous management. On 23
February 2016, the Fund Provider has commenced
legal proceedings by issuing a writ of summons in
the High Court of Hong Kong against the Fund
Recipient. Despite of the legal proceedings, the
recoverability of the HK$10 million is uncertain and
in the opinion of the Director a full impairment loss
of HK$10 million had been made in the financial year
ended 31 December 2015. Details
regarding the HK$10 million paid to the Fund Recipient
was disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 17 December 2015 and 23 February 2016.

information

Removal of Directors

As the facts that the Board take into account and
was disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 23 February 2016, the Board resolved that Mr.
Shan Jiuliang, Ms. Zhang Peng and Mr. Wen Di (the
“Three Directors”) shall take administrative leave on
a compulsory basis with effect from 23 February 2016.
As such, the authorities of the Three Directors have
been suspended with effect from 23 February 2016.

(iii)

(iv)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBHNWR DM

(v)

Based on the Company'’s records, Ms. Zhang and Mr.
Wen last attended a Board meeting of the Company
on 27 August 2015 and Mr. Shan last attended a
Board meeting on 15 October 2015. All of them have
failed to report for duties to the Company and, without
proper notification and special leave of absence from
the Board, has been absent from meetings of the
Board for at least six consecutive months, the Board
had not been able to obtain their views towards
matters that are of relevance to the Company. Mr.
Shan and Ms. Zhang had not been fulfilling and
discharging their responsibilities as executive Directors
either as to the daily businesses or strategic decisions
of the Company. The Board concluded that it will not
be in the best interest of the Company and its
Shareholders as whole to permit the Three Directors
to continue to be the Director and resolved that the
Three Directors are disqualified as Directors. Ms.
Zhang and Mr. Wen were removed as executive
Director and non-executive Director respectively on
15 April 2016 and Mr. Shan was removed as executive
Director on 12 May 2016. Details information regarding
the aforesaid Three Directors was disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 17 December 2015,
23 February 2016, 15 April 2016 and 12 May 2016.

Investment in an equal joint venture in provision
of finance and money lending business

On 29 February 2016, the Company began its
engagement in the integrated financial services
business by entered into a joint venture agreement
dated 26 February 2016 (the “JV Agreement”) with
Bob May Incorporated (“BMI”), pursuant to which the
Company and BMI agreed to form a 50-50 equal joint
venture, Imagination Holding Limited (the “JV
Company”) for the purpose of carrying out the
business of provision of finance and money lending
services by contribution of HK$150 million each from
the Company and BMI to the initial share capital of
the JV Company so that the Company and BMI each
hold 50% equity interest in the JV Company. Details
information regarding the joint venture arrangement
was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
26 February 2016.
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(vi)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Potential very substantial acquisition

On 10 March 2016, the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreement”) with Freeman Financial
Investment Corporation (the “Vendor”, an independent
third party) for acquisition of Smart Jump Corporation
(“Smart Jump”, a company engaging in the securities
trading business) at a consideration of
HK$1,800,000,000 which will be satisfied, among
others, by a cash deposit of HK$150,000,000 non-
refundable deposit (the “Deposit”) and the balance
of HK$1,650,000,000 by issuance of promissory notes
by the Company in favour of the Vendor or its
nominee(s) upon completion (the “Acquisition”). The
proposed Acquisition constituted a very substantial
acquisition of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. On 15 April 2016, the Listing Division
of the Stock Exchange has made a ruling and issued
a decision by fax on the proposed Acquisition stated
that “We consider that the Acquisition is a reserve
takeover under Rule 14.06(6). The Company would
be treated as if it were a new listing applicant under
Rule 14.54 if it proceeds with the Acquisition.”. This
rendered the proposed Acquisition incapable to
proceed. The Company proceeded with ruling review
first to the Listing Committee and Listing Committee
upholding the Listing Department’s decision. The
Company then referred the case to Listing (Review)
Committee for a further review of the Listing
Committee’s ruling. A final ruling against the Company
was made on 9 August 2016 and the parties to the
Acquisition agreed to terminate the Sale and Purchase
Agreement on 9 August 2016. The HK$150,000,000
non-refundable deposit was forfeited accordingly and
fully written-off during the Year under Review. Details
information regarding the Acquisition was disclosed
in the Company’s announcements dated 18 April
2016, 25 April 2016, 3 June 2016 and 9 August 2016.

(vi)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBHNWR DM

(vii)

Revolving loan facility and potential continuing
connected transaction

On 16 March 2016, the Company entered into a
revolving loan agreement (the “Revolving Loan
Agreement”) with Cordoba Homes Finance Limited
(as the “Lender”) pursuant to which, the Lender has
conditionally agreed to provide a revolving loan facility
of up to HK$100 million to the Company for a term
of one year commencing from the loan effective date.
As one of the substantial shareholders of the Company
is the fellow subsidiary of the Lender, the Lender is
therefore a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction
contemplated under the Revolving Loan Agreement
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company which is subject to the approval by the
independent Shareholders at a special general meeting
(the “Condition”). Since the Condition precedent to
the Revolving Loan Agreement was not fulfilled by
the long stop date, the Lender and the Company
agreed that the Revolving Loan Agreement lapsed with
effect on 8 August 2016. Details information regarding
the revolving loan facility was disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 16 March 2016 and
8 August 2016.

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(vii)

BREFBEREEHBEEAERS

RZZE—R"F=ZA+ B XAQaH
Cordoba Homes Finance Limited([ &
RADFI L BRE R = BRER
) B ERAEERHERERAK
2 a3 it 5% %100,000,000/% 7T 2 & &
EX@mE BERENH R A —
F-HRARA—BEERTEAERA
ZBERWBAR EHit ERARLTH
BIIETAR B 2BEALT ML BR
EXMZEE MRET IR HBKART
CIEERER S ARBRRENAE L
BEREME(RED AREER
BEIEABRERERBEO L REGR
BEEK  BERABARRIRE  BRER
wEE T —A"FN\AN\BREXH-B
BRERREFARENFAENBEEREAR
AIBAZE—R"E=-A+ BHEZE
—NENANBZRE-



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(viii) Proposed re-domicile from Bermuda to Hong

(ix)

Kong

On 8 June 2016, the Company announced its intention
to re-domicile from Bermuda to Hong Kong by way
of scheme of arrangement under Section 99 of the
Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Re-
domicile”). The Company, having the bulk of its
business and operations and its listing in Hong Kong
believed that the move with re-affirm the Company’s
commitment to and recognition of its roots stemming
from Hong Kong. The Company also would like to
take advantage of better legal and compliance
standards afforded in Hong Kong and also believed
that the re-domicile would better placed it to take
advantage of expanding its financial services business
into China through measures such as CEPA. The Re-
domicile is progressing and the Company looks
forward of its implementation in 2017. Details
information regarding the Re-domicile was disclosed
in the Company’s announcements dated 8 June 2016
and 11 November 2016.

Estimate tax assessment issued by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department (“HKIRD”)

On 21 March 2016, Imagi Crystal Limited (“ICL”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, received a
time-barred tax demand note dated 14 March 2016
of approximately HK$9.9 million issued by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”) for
the year of assessment 2009/2010. HKIRD disallowed
the deduction of an impairment loss on the computer
graphic imaging animation pictures recognised in the
year of assessment 2009/2010. ICL had lodged an
objection to HKIRD related to the assessment and
HKIRD requested ICL to purchase tax reserve
certificate of the same amount. Since ICL is in net
current liabilities positon, ICL did not purchase the
tax reserve certificate before the due date and HKIRD
had applied surcharges of approximately HK$1.5
million to the outstanding amount as of 14 December
2016. The management of the Company engaged
professional tax specialist as its tax adviser to contest
the assessment.
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On 23 February 2017, ICL received a time-barred tax
demand note dated 21 February 2017 of approximately
HK$1.1 million issued by the HKIRD for the year of
assessment 2010/2011. HKIRD disallowed the
deduction of an impairment loss on amounts due from
a fellow subsidiary recognised in the year of
assessment 2010/2011. The same tax specialist has
been engaged to lodge an objection to contest the
estimate assessment on behalf of ICL.

In return of the ICL’s submission, HKIRD considered
that the impairment loss on graphic imaging animation
pictures, classified as intangible assets, charged to
profit or loss for the respective year should not be
deductible and the costs should have been treated
as capital expenditure for the year of assessment of
2009/10. Furthermore, HKIRD considered that the
impairment loss on an amount due from a fellow
subsidiary as a waiver to the fellow subsidiary in the
year of assessment 2010/2011 and should not be
deductible as there were no documentary evidences
to justify the claim for impairment loss. The directors
of the Company considered that the probability of
objection may not be high. Accordingly, ICL recognized
approximately HK$11.0 million as income tax expense
and approximately HK$1.5 million as administrative
expense for the Year under Review, and up to the
date of this report, ICL is preparing for a further
submission to HKIRD through the tax specialist to
contest those estimate assessments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS UP TO THE DATE OF
THIS ANNUAL REPORT

U]

(ii)

Disposal of assets

On 21 February 2017, High Gear Holdings Limited
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as the “Vendor”) entered into the Memorandum of
Agreement with the independent purchaser (the
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to purchase the motor yacht at
a consideration of US$4.2 million. The disposal was
completed on 20 March 2017. Detailed information
regarding the disposal was disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 February 2017.

Share transaction to acquire a licensed
corporation under SFO

On 30 August 2016, the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) with independent third parties (the
“Vendors”), pursuant to which the Company (or its
nominee) has conditionally agreed to purchase, and
Vendors have conditionally to sell, the entire issued
share capital of John & Wong Securities Company
Limited (the “Target Company”, a corporate licensed
under the SFO to carry out Type 1 (dealing in
securities) regulated activity) at a consideration in sum
of HK$18.4 million, which was partly settled by cash
for the amount of HK$6.4 million and the remaining
consideration was settled by the Company by
issuance of 60,000,000 Shares under a specific
issue price of HK$0.20 (the
“Consideration Shares”). The acquisition was
completed on 28 February 2017, the consideration
was satisfied by 60,000,000 Shares issued and allotted
on 28 February 2017 and cash settlement of
approximately HK$6.18 million after taking into
account of a dollar-to-dollar downward adjustment
pursuant to the Agreement. The Target Company
became an indirect-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company on the completion date. Detailed information
regarding the share transaction and the acquisition
was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
30 August 2016 and circular dated 7 October 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBHNWR DM

(iii)

(iv)

Share consolidation

On 10 March 2017, an ordinary resolution to approve
the share consolidation was passed by the shareholders
at a special general meeting of the Company whereby
share consolidation became effective on 13 March
2017 that every eight issued and unissued share of
HK$0.005 each be consolidated into one consolidated
share of HK$0.04 each (the “Share Consolidation”).
Detailed information regarding the Share Consolidation
was disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 26 January 2017 and 10 March 2017 and
circular dated 22 February 2017.

Strategic Alliance and Share Swap

On 16 March 2017, the Company and Enerchina
Holdings Limited (“Enerchina”, stock code: 622)
entered into a non-legal binding Strategic Alliance
Memorandum, underwhich Enerchina had agreed (a)
to provide the Company with technical and business
assistance to establish and develop the infra-structure
and the frame-work to further the Company’s financial
services business; and (b) to co-operate with each
other to promote mutually beneficial business
opportunities (collectively as the “Strategic Alliance”).
This is another step towards the Company’s strategy
to develop financial services business as one of the
Company’s core businesses. Detailed information
regarding the aforesaid business updates was
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 16
March 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 16 March 2017, the Company and Enerchina
entered into a share swap agreement (the “Share
Swap Agreement”) in order to cement the
aforementioned relationship with Enerchina. Pursuant
to the Share Swap Agreement whereby the Company
will issue of 113,400,000 subscription shares to
Enerchina in exchange for the 378,000,000 new shares
of Enerchina (the “Share Swap”). The Share Swap
was completed on 22 March 2017, the 113,400,000
subscription shares was issued and allotted under
general mandate granted to the Directors by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting held on 28 October 2016, representing
approximately 19.69% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of Share Swap Agreement.
Detailed information regarding the Share Swap was
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 16
March 2017.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESNSREERBEMN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin, aged 52, a Canadian citizen,
completed his high-school education in Hong Kong and
undergraduate studies in Canada. Mr. Kitchell had obtained
a honourary diploma from Pickering College in Canada. Mr.
Kitchell studied Economics in the University of Toronto,
Canada. Mr. Kitchell is a veteran investor mainly in Hong
Kong equity markets with over 15 years’ experience. Mr.
Kitchell had been an investor managing a private family
fund. Mr. Kitchell had been an executive director, chief
executive officer and chairman of Unity Investments Holdings
Limited (stock code: 913), a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, for the period from January
2005, January 2006 and January 2008 respectively to
December 2014. Mr. Kitchell had been an executive director
of Skyway Securities Group Limited (formerly known as
Mission Capital Holdings Limited, stock code: 1141), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
for the period from January 2015 to July 2015.

Mr. Shimazaki Koji, aged 47, holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Engineering and a Master degree in Electrical
Engineering from Kanagawa University in Yokohama, Japan.
Mr. Shimazaki has over 20 years of experience in web
developing and programming, production and quality control
engineering. Mr. Shimazaki had been an executive director
and chief executive officer of Eagle Ride Investment Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Radford Capital Investment
Limited, stock code: 901) for the period from May 2005 to
October 2013 and from May 2008 to October 2013
respectively and had been an executive director of Unity
Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 913) for the
period from December 2013 to November 2014, all of which
are companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Choi Ka Wing, aged 34, completed her high-school
education in Hong Kong and had further her studies at the
Perth Institute of Business and Technology in Perth,
Australia. Ms. Choi worked in customer services in the
catering division of a 5 star hotel in Hong Kong for over
one year and gained experience in the food and beverage
and entertainment businesses. Ms. Choi had been an
executive director of Unity Investments Holdings Limited
(stock code: 913), a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange for the period from October 2006 to
November 2014.

Mr. Wong Yat Fai, aged 57, holds a professional diploma
in banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Wong has over 13 years of working experience in an
international banking group. Mr. Wong had been (i) a non-
executive director of the companies including The Cross-
Harbour (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 32) for the period
from October 2007 to December 2012; Yugang International
Limited (stock code: 613) for the period from October 2007
to December 2012; Y.T. Realty Group Limited (stock code:
75) for the period from October 2007 to February 2016;
and C C Land Holding Limited (stock code: 1224) for the
period from October 2007 to March 2016; (ii) an executive
director of China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited
(formerly known as China Jinhai International Group Limited,
stock code: 139) for the period from April 2000 to July
2015; and (iii) an independent non-executive director of
Skyway Securities Group Limited (formerly known as Mission
Capital Holdings Limited, stock code: 1141) for the period
from November 2014 to July 2015, all of which are
companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wong resigned as executive director of the Company
on 10 April 2017.
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ESENSREERBET

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny, aged 58, holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Arts from Simon Fraser University in British
Columbia, Canada. Dr. Kwong held senior positions with
major international banks in Hong Kong in respective lending
departments and China department for many years. For the
past years, he has served as executive director of over 10
publicly listed companies both in Hong Kong, Canada and
the United Kingdom. Dr. Kwong has extensive knowledge
in corporate finance and banking. Dr. Kwong was a director
of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals from 2008 to 2010 and
was a member of the Campaign Committee of The
Community Chest from 2006 to 2010. Dr. Kwong was an
appointed member of the China People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the Hubei province in 1995 to 1996 and is
currently an appointed member of the China People’s
Political Consultative Conference of the Zhaoging City.
During the past three years, Dr. Kwong had been an
executive director and chairman of China Innovative Finance
Group Limited (formerly known as Heritage International
Holdings Limited, stock code: 412) for the period from
December 2001 to August 2014; an executive director and
managing director of China Soft Power Technology Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China Jinhai International Group
Limited, stock code: 139) for the period from September
2014 to April 2015; and an executive director and managing
director of HengTen Networks Group Limited (formerly
known as Mascotte Holdings Limited, stock code: 136) for
the period from May 2015 to October 2015, all of which
are companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent, aged 48, obtained a Master’s
degree in Professional Accounting from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Chow is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chow has over 15 years’ experience in
the finance and accounting field in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow
had been an executive director, company secretary and
financial controller of China Innovative Finance Group
Limited (formerly known as Heritage International Holdings
Limited, stock code: 412), for the period from October 2006
to October 2014 and an executive director of HengTen
Networks Group Limited (formerly known as Mascotte
Holdings Limited, stock code: 136) for the period from
November 2014 to October 2015, all of which are companies
listed on the main board of Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow is
presently an executive director, managing director and
company secretary of Enerchina Holdings Limited (stock
code: 622), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow resigned as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 10 April 2017.

Mr. Miu Frank H., aged 67, holds a Juris Doctor degree
from Harvard Law School and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics and Accounting from St. John’s University of
Minnesota in the United States of America. Mr. Miu is a
member of the American Bar Association and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Fellow
of Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Apart from professional
experience in law and accounting, he has extensive exposure
to various industries including financial services. During the
past three years, Mr. Miu had been an independent non-
executive director of (i) Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited
(formerly known as Freeman Financial Corporation Limited,
stock code: 279) for the period from December 2011 to
August 2013; (ii) Tack Fiori International Group Limited (stock
code: 928) for the period from August 2011 to May 2014;
(iii) HengTen Networks Group Limited (formerly known as
Mascotte Holdings Limited, stock code: 136) for the period
from December 2009 to October 2015; (iv) Mason Financial
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Willie International
Holdings Limited, stock code: 273) for the period from June
2011 to October 2015; and (v) China Soft Power Technology
Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Jinhai International
Group Limited, stock code: 139) for the period from October
2014 to July 2016, all of which are companies listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Aside from directorships
in the aforesaid public companies listed on the Stock
Exchange, Mr. Miu is also an independent non-executive
director of Duoyuan Global Water Inc. (previously listed on
New York Stock Exchange).
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Dr. Santos Antonio Maria, aged 60, holds a Ph. D. degree
in Business Administration from the Neuva Ecija University
of Science & Technology in the Philippines, a Master’s
degree in Management Studies from University of Northumbria
at Newcastle, United Kingdom and a Master’s degree in
Criminal Justice from the Tarlac State University, the
Philippines. He is a fellow of the Chartered Management
Institute, United Kingdom. Dr. Santos retired from the Hong
Kong Police Force in January 2012 after more than 30 years
of service there. Apart from volunteering for community
services, he is currently a director and shareholder of
Advance Tactics Service Limited (a private company
principally engaged in providing personal and commercial
risk management consultant services in Hong Kong and
greater China). Dr. Santos currently is also a director and
shareholder of A.M. Santos & Company Limited (a private
company incorporated in Hong Kong) and United Partners
Incorporated (a private company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands), both of which are principally engaged in
provided financial consultancy services. Dr. Santos had been
an executive director of China Solar Energy Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 155)
for the period from October 2014 to May 2015 and an acting
chairman for the period from December 2014 to May 2015
and an independent non-executive director of Mason
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Willie
International Holdings Limited, stock code: 273) for the
period from August 2012 to April 2016, all of which are
companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Dr. Santos is presently an independent non-executive
director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited (stock code: 720),
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chung Wilson, aged 64, is the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Chung holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Mathematics from the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee
and a Master’s degree in Science and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration (with Honors) from Cornell
Graduate School of Business Administration, the United
States of America. He has over 23 years’ experience in
corporate finance and banking.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yu Man Fung Alice, aged 45, is the senior vice president
and general manager of business development of the
Company. Ms. Yu has been the general manager of various
listed & non-listed companies for the past 15 years of her
career, including Tack Fiori International Group Limited
(stock code: 928) and Bingo Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8220). Ms. Yu is experienced in overseeing operational
aspects of companies and business strategic planning.

Ms. Chen Wei, aged 35,
development, China of the Company. Ms. Chen holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in International Finance from
the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, a
Master of Science degree in Money, Banking and Finance
from the University of Birmingham and a PhD degree in
Economics from the University of Birmingham. Ms. Chen
has extensive experience in finance and banking industry
in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. Ms. Chen had been
an executive director of two public companies listed on the
Stock Exchange in the past three years.

is a director of business

Mr. Zhan Jianzhou, aged 45, is a director of business
development, China of the Company. Mr. Zhan was awarded
the Certificate in Foreign Trade by Shenzhen University and
completed the postgraduate course of professional studies
in business administration at Sichuan University. He holds
a Master of Business Administration from Sun Yat-sen
University. He held senior positions with major international
banks and financial investment groups for years. Mr. Zhan
was nominated as the outstanding private entrepreneur in
Laibin City, Guangxi in 2006. Mr. Zhan has extensive
knowledge in corporate finance and banking. Mr. Zhan had
been an executive director of a company listed on the Stock
Exchange in the past three years.

Mr. Woo Eddie, aged 45, is a director of business
development, Asia Ex Japan of the Company. Mr. Woo has
extensive corporate finance and direct investment experience
in the Greater China region. He was an executive director
of a company listed on the Stock Exchange in the past.
Mr. Woo received his M.B.A. from the University of San
Francisco and his bachelor’'s degree from the University of
California, Santa Cruz.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices as the Board considers that
good and effective corporate governance is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company
to investing public and other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Year under Review, the Company has complied
with the code provision (the “Code Provision”) set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviations
described below.

Code Provision A.2.2 to A.2.9 stipulates that the role
and responsibility of chairman is to provide leadership
for the Board and to ensure a proper management of
the Board.

Since Mr. Leung Pak To (“Mr. Leung”) resigned as non-
executive Director and chairman of the Board on 23 February
2016, the vacancy left due to his resignation fill up until 13
June 2016 which constitutes a deviation from the Code
Provision A.2.2 to A.2.9 of the CG Code.

Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin (“Mr. Kitchell”) was appointed as an
acting chairman of the Board on 13 June 2016 to fill the
vacancy occasioned by the resignation of Mr. Leung. Mr.
Kitchell took up the responsibility to manage the Board in
accordance with Code Provision A.2.2 to A.2.9 of the CG
Code.

Code Provision A.6.2 stipulates that the non-executive
directors should participate in board meeting to bring
an independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct.

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEERR RERERZEEEBBHENQ
AYEREARREMTNE ZEE L NERE
THEE HARAHNERBKFZIEEE
AERH

EEERER

REBFE ARBIEETHAES EHE
(T EMARR D8+ HERERTRI MDEE
BRI E(TRETRI ) Pz 57 AMESC (T <7 Al
&3 1) METR SRR 2 (R BB R BR S o

FRMRX FEA22ZEA2IKRE EFEELE
HWBEREFEREFESEARERERERE
HWEESEE -

HRREETE(REE]DR=2F—X F=A
T ZHEBIERTESREETE TR BEE
FEENTERES - "FAT=-BF#%
HA - HUBAIRBEDR B PR 2 SFRECEA2.2
ZEA2.91%°

Kitchell Osman Bin%t 4 ([ Kitchellst 4 1) %
T RERNATZHEZAAEECERE
& R REEFTEENTR - Kitchell 5t
FIRBEESFAZFRIEXFEA2.2EA2.9(%
EEEFEERBE -

FRIRXFEAC2FHTE  FHTEERESHE
FEEE TYREW BEX AAXRE BHE
M BR FEZARRTERNEEET L EH#
BIHESR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Mr. Wen Di (“Mr. Wen”) was the non-executive Director.
Based on the Company’s records, Mr. Wen last attended a
Board meeting of the Company on 27 August 2015. Mr.
Wen did not attend any subsequent Board meetings without
special leave of absence from the Board for at least six
consecutive months which constitutes a deviation from the
Code Provision A.6.2 of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.6.3 stipulates that every director should
ensure that he can give sufficient time and attention to
the issuer’s affairs and should not accept the appointment
if he cannot do so.

Based on the Company’s record, Mr. Shan Jiuliang (“Mr.
Shan”) and Ms. Zhang Peng (“Ms. Zhang”) (being the
executive Directors) and Mr. Wen (being the non-executive
Director) did not attend any Board meetings without special
leave of absence from the Board for at least six consecutive
months which constitutes a deviation from the Code
Provision A.6.3 of the CG Code.

The Board resolved at Board meeting held on 23 February
2016, Mr. Shan, Ms. Zhang and Mr. Wen shall take
administrative leave on a compulsory basis with effect from
23 February 2016. As such, the authorities of them as
Directors have been suspended from 23 February 2016.
Subsequently, Mr. Shan, Ms. Zhang and Mr. Wen were
removed from the Board on 12 May 2016, 15 April 2016
and 15 April 2016, respectively.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders.
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Due to other pre-arranged business commitments which
must be attended,

(i) Mr. Miu Frank H., being independent non-executive
Director, was not present at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 30 May 2016; and

(i) Dr. Santos Antoni Maria, being independent non-
executive Director, was not present at a special
general meeting held on 28 October 2016.

However, (i) Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny, Mr. Chow Chi Wah
Vincent and Dr. Santos Antoni Maria, all of them being
independent non-executive Directors, were present at the
aforesaid special general meeting held on 30 May 2016;
and (ii) Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny, Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent
and Mr. Miu Frank H., all of them being independent non-
executive Directors, were present at aforesaid special
general meeting held on 28 October 2016.

Code Provision C.1.1 stipulates that management should
provide sufficient explanation and information to the
Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of
financial and other information put before it for approval;
and Code Provision C.1.2 stipulates that management
should provide all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under
Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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Although the management has not been able to provide the
complete set of monthly update containing consolidated
management accounts of the Group to the Board due to
the failure to obtain a copy of monthly bank statements of
Xiamen Sunflower Mingde Business Service Co., Ltd. since
September 2015, to remedy the situations, the Company
convened seven times of Board meetings over four months
period from September 2015 to December 2015 in order to
manage and understand the operations of the Company.
Following with the subsequent disposal of the aforesaid
subsidiary as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 8 March 2016 which was completed on 9 March
2016, the Company is able to provide a complete set of
monthly update to the Board.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as going
concern.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend annual general meeting of the
Company.

Subsequent to resignation of Mr. Leung as Chairman of the
Board on 23 February 2016, the vacancy of the chairman
remain left as at the date of the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 2 June 2016 (“2015 AGM”) which
constitutes a deviation from the Code Provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code.

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip, the former executive Director,
took the chair of the 2015 AGM and other members of the
Board (including the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee) also attended the 2015 AGM to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. In response to the specific enquiry made by
the Company, all existing Directors confirmed that they fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year under Review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
four executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors, all of them are high caliber executives with
diversified industry expertise and bring a wide range of
skills and experience to the Group.

Executive Directors

Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin (Acting Chairman)
Mr. Shimazaki Koji

Ms. Choi Ka Wing

Mr. Wong Yat Fai (resigned on 10 April 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny

Dr. Santos Antonio Maria

Mr. Miu Frank H.

Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent (resigned on 10 April 2017)

An updated list of the Directors by category identifying their
role and function is at all times available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications whenever the names of Directors
are disclosed.

Details of the biographies of Directors as at the date of
this annual report are set out in section “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report on pages
32 to 36. There are no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship)
among members of the Board.
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During the Year under Review, the Board maintained a high
level of independence, of having a minimum of three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with at one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The non-executive
Directors play an important role of the Board and are
responsible for ensuring that the Board maintains high
standards of financial and other mandatory reporting as
well as providing adequate checks and balances for
safeguarding the interest of shareholder of the Company
and the Group as a whole.

The Board has received written annual confirmation from
each existing independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers all existing independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Meetings

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance
in general meeting, Board meetings and other committee
meetings during the Year under Review are as follows:
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Number of meetings attended/held during the respective tenure

EBESALE/S2ERHE
Annual  Special Audit  Nomination Remuneration
general  general Board Committee  Committee ~ Committee
meeting meetings meetings  meetings  meetings  meetings
RREF HRNH  ES® ENZRE RAZRE  FMZEe
- rg g3 EE g3 g3
Executive Directors HTEE
Kitchell Osman Bin (appointed as executive  Kitchell Osman Bin(* ~F—7% 1A
Director and Acting Chairman on 10 May TARZE-~"E A TR
2016 and 13 June 2016 respectively) EZERBNESRERLR) 1N 22 2833 NATER NATEER NATEE
Shimazaki Koji (appointed on 10 May 2016) ~ SE=A(R-E-"ELATREZHE) 1N 22 1933 NATER  NATER  NATER
Choi Ka Wing (appointed on 12 May 2016) ~ EFR(R-T-—FRAT-REZE) 01 112 17/%2  NATER NATER NATER
Wong Yat Fai (appointed on 28 January 2016 TAE(R-F—7F-A-1/\A
and resigned on 10 April 2017) EZERR-Z-tENATAEH) 1 22 5054 NATER  NATEER NATEE
Suen Yick Lun Philip (appointed on 28 January F&E(R-F-—7F-A-+/\HE
2016 and resigned on 16 August 2016) EE UR=F-EN\ATBEE) 111 11 36/38  NATER  NATER NATEE
Chung Yuk Lun (appointed on 1 May 2016 EEB(R-T-RFLA-REZE ¥
and resigned on 15 June 2016) R EARTRAEH) il 11 610  NATNEE  NANER  NA TER
Shan Jiuliang™ (removed on 12 May 2016)  EAR™(RZE-RELATZARES) 0/0 0/0 023 NATER NATER  NATER
Zhang Peng” (removed on 15 April 2016)  FHE“(R-F-RELATRARER) 010 00 017 NANEE  NANER  NA TER
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TR R
TEEREE
Number of meetings attended/held during the respective tenure
EBESALE/S2ERHE
Annual  Special Audit  Nomination Remuneration
general  general Board Committee  Committee ~ Committee
meeting meetings meetings  meetings  meetings  meetings
RREF HRNH  ES® ENZEE RAZEE  FMZEe
7N - g3 g3 g3 g
Non-executive Directors FHMEE
Leung Pak To (resigned as Chairman and RRE(R-E-7F-A-T=A
non-executive director on 23 February 2016)  BETERIHIES) 0/0 0/0 3/4 00 NATEE NATEE
Wen Di* (removed on 15 April 2016) RE(R-Z-ENATRRRES) 010 00 017 NANEE  NANER  NA TER
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHfEE
Kwong Kai Sing Benny BRI
(appointed on 28 January 2016) (RZE-R"E-A-T/\REZf) 11 22 31/54 202 7/8 919
Santos Antonio Maria g4
(appointed on 28 January 2016) (RZE-R"E-A-T\REZf) 11 112 36/54 202 718 8/9
Miu Frank H. (appointed on 2 February 2016) 2R (R-F- 7 5-A-HEZHE) il 112 26/53 202 206 5/8
Chow Chi Wah Vincent (appointed on 28 AEE(WZF-~E-A-1/\REZRE
January 2016 and resigned on 10 April 2017) R ZE—LEMATEEE) 11 22 34/54 202 78 919
Chan Yuk Sang (resigned on 28 January 2016) REE(R-F-—"E-A-1/\BRT) 0/0 00 11 00 NATEE 01
Cheng Yuk Wo (resigned on 28 January 2016) BEM(R-F-—~EF-A=1/\BRT) 0/0 00 11 0/0 112 01
Lam Lee G. (resigned on 28 January 2016)  MRE(R-F-—"F-A-1T/\RE(E) 0/0 00 1M NATER 112 01

* Mr. Shan Jiuliang, Ms. Zhang Peng and Mr. Wen Di are under
administrative leave with effect from 23 February 2016.
(Details can be referred to the Company’s announcement
dated 23 February 2016.)

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) also attended the annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) together with external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu to answer any question from the
Shareholders. All Directors treasure the opportunity to
canvass the views of the Shareholders in AGM held annually.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board

The Board, led by the chairman, steers the Company’s
business direction. It is delegated with responsibilities of
executing the Board’s decision, including setting business
development goals, monitoring the financial performance,
ensuring effective implementation of internal control and
risk management measures and overseeing the performance
of management, and in-charging day-to-day operation. Save
as the deviation of Code Provision A.6.3 due to prolonged
absence of Mr. Shan Jiuliang, Ms. Zhang Peng and Mr. Wen
Di (the “Three Directors”) described above, the Board takes
responsibility for all major matters of the Company. All
Directors other than the Three Directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all
times.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are led by executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. All Directors have timely
access to all relevant information as well as the advice and
services of the Company Secretary and senior management
of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are
followed. In discharge its responsibilities, the Board meets
regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and
care. Any Director may request independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expenses, upon reasonable request made to the Board.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
chairman provides leadership for the Board and ensures
that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibility whilst the chief executive officer of the
Company has overall chief executive responsibility for the
Group’s business development and day-to-day management
generally. The position of chief executive officer of the
Company remains vacant until 28 January 2016 with the
appointment of new executive Directors and general manager
of the Company, the responsibilities of chief executive officer
have been passed to the executive committee of the
Company.

Directors’ continuous professional development

To ensure Directors’ contributions to the Board remains
informed and relevant, all the Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the
Year under Review, the Company (i) has arranged in-house
training conducted by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
for the Directors and senior executives and (ii) has provided
with regular updates, presentations on changes and
developments of the Group’s business and the latest
developments in laws, rules and regulations relating to
director’s duties and responsibilities.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of two
years. Furthermore, in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.
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According to the Bye-laws, Directors appointed to fill casual
vacancies shall hold office until the next following general
meeting and can be eligible for re-appointment at that time.
According to Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment. Every Director, including those
appointed for a specific terms, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction
package containing all key legal and Listing Rules’
requirements as well as guidelines on the responsibilities
and obligations to be observed by a Director. The package
will also include the latest published financial reports of the
Company and the documentations for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior
management will subsequently conduct such briefing as is
necessary to give the new Directors more detailed information
on the Group’s business and activities.

Insurance of the Directors and officers

The Company has bought liability insurance for Directors
and officers in respect of legal action against the Directors
and officers which is in compliance with Code Provision
A.1.8 of the CG Code.

Board diversity policy

Under Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the nomination
committee (or the board) should have a policy concerning
diversity of board member, and should disclose the policy
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 26 August 2013. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and endeavors to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business. In
determining the optimum composition of the Board and
diversity of Board members, the Board will consider a
number of factors in order to maintain an appropriate range
and balance of talents, skills, experience and knowledge
on the Board. The Company will also take into account its
own business model and specific needs from time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a
Nomination Committee, each of which has its specific
written terms of reference, which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. Copies
of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the committees,
which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated
to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decisions and
recommendations where appropriate.
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Audit committee

The main role and functions of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board in fulfilling its audit duties through the
review and supervision of the Company’s financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee shall also have the following responsibilities,
powers and discretion, among others, reviewing the financial
information of the Company, overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedure,
and maintaining relations with the auditor of the Company.
The Audit Committee has also been delegated with the
responsibilities to oversee the corporate governance
functions, which include developing, reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, legal and regulatory requirements
compliance; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the corporate governance code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. A new Terms of Reference
of the Audit Committee was adopted on 30 March 2016 so
as to ensure the function of overseeing financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems can
be properly performed by the Audit Committee.

During the Year under Review and up to the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee mainly performed the
following duties:

° reviewed the Group’s audited annual results for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 and the
unaudited interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2016, met with external
auditors without presence of the Company’s executive
Directors to discuss such interim and annual results,
also any significant matters need to be reflected in
such accounts and reports and disclaimer/qualified
opinion for the 2015 and 2016 audited annual results
respectively, and was of the opinion that the
preparation of the relevant financial statements
complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure has
been made;

° reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;
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° recommended the appointment of the external
auditors;
° assisted the Board in meeting its responsibilities for

maintaining an effective system of internal control and
risk management; and

o assessed the impact on the Group in respect of
unconsolidated of subsidiary namely Xiamen Sunflower
and the ascertaining the nature of purported fund
advance made during the financial year ended 31
December 2015 with reference to a report prepared
by an independent accountants.

During the Year under Review, the Audit Committee held
two meetings and the details of attendance was set out on
pages 43 and 44 of this annual report.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
composed of four independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Chow Chi Wah Vincent (“Mr. Chow”), being a Chairman of
the Audit Committee, Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny, Mr. Miu
Frank H. and Dr. Santos Antonio Maria. On 10 April 2017,
Mr. Chow resigned as an independent non-executive Director
and ceased to act as the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and Mr. Miu Frank H. has been appointed as the Chairman
of Audit Committee in place of Mr. Chow.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee was established with the
primarily responsibilities of reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying and recommending
individuals nominated for directorships, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors,
monitoring the implementation of and reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination
Committee composed of four independent non-executive
Directors, Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny (committee chairman),
Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent, Dr. Santos Antonio Maria and
Mr. Miu Frank H. On 10 April 2017, Mr. Chow Chi Wah
Vincent resigned as an independent non-executive Director
and ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee.
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During the Year under Review, the Nomination Committee
held eight meetings. The Nomination Committee considered
the appointment of proposed Directors, removal of Directors,
review of the existing structure, size and composition of
the Board and accessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also
reviewed objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was set up
with key responsibilities of, among others, recommending
to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management and
on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee composed of four independent non-executive
Directors, Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny (committee chairman),
Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent, Dr. Santos Antonio Maria and
Mr. Miu Frank H. On 10 April 2017, Mr. Chow Chi Wah
Vincent resigned as an independent non-executive Director
and ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee.

During the Year under Review, the Remuneration Committee
held nine meetings, among others, to discuss and review
the yearly performance bonus and salary adjustment of the
employees and to make recommendation to the Board of
the remuneration package regarding the newly appointed
Directors.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the Year
under Review are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements contained in this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for preforming the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year under Review, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and CG
Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
the effective risk management and internal control systems
enhance the Group’s ability in achieving business objectives,
safeguarding assets, complying with applicable laws and
regulations, and contribute to the effectiveness and efficiency
of its operations.

The Group has in place internal control systems which
encompasses control environment, segregation of duties,
policies and procedures, monitoring and is reviewed and
enhanced by the management at regular intervals.

In light of the corporate governance issues associated with
the matters identified in the announcement of the Company
dated 17 December 2015 (the “Identified Issues”), the
Company engaged an independent forensic specialists (the
“Independent Forensic Specialists”) to carry out forensic
investigation in order to gather relevant factual information
that could assist the Board other than the Three Directors
in ascertaining, to the extent possible:
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(a) What information is available relating to the Identified
Issues;

(b) Whether there is evidence of misappropriation of funds
by the Three Directors unrelated to the ldentified
Issues; and

(c) Whether there are any agreements/guarantees/
commitments made by the Three Directors on behalf
of the Company which have not been brought to the
attention of the Board.

Based on the findings of the Independent Forensic
Specialists and as disclosed under the section headed
“Contingent Liabilities and Commitments”, the Board is
satisfied that there are no other significant governance
matters unrelated to the ldentified Issues that have had a
material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

However, certain internal controls were overridden by Mr.
Shan Jiuliang during the Year under Review and reference
is also made to the announcement of the Company dated
17 December 2015. The potential continuing connected
transaction and fund transfer to an independent third party
without proper notification to and authorisation of the Board,
and the failure to obtain the bank statements of an entity
in which the Company owned 100% equity interest
demonstrated the discrepancies of the existing internal
control systems.

The Company is now making all-out effort and in the process
of adopting remedial measures, including but not limited to
engaging an independent internal control specialists to carry
out a comprehensive internal control review. During the Year
under Review two phases of the internal control reviews
have been conducted and review reports on the findings
with recommendations for further improvement have been
submitted by the internal control specialists and considered
by the Audit Committee, and remedial and improvement
actions are being out and monitored by the management
of the Company. Follow-up review will be conducted to
ensure the improvement actions are efficiently and effectively
in force.
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In compliance with the Stock Exchange’s implementation
of the revised Listing Rules relating to the risk management
and internal controls for the accounting periods beginning
on the or after 1 January 2016, the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee were revised by the Board on 30 March
2016 so as to ensure the corporate governance functions
can be properly performed by the Audit Committee. In this
regard, the Audit Committee has been delegated with the
responsibilities to review the effectiveness of the Company’s
risk management system annually in compliance with the
Code C.2.1 of the CG Code. In the second half of the Year
under Review, the Company also engaged another internal
control specialists to carry out overall review and
implementation of internal control procedure of the Group
which including the setting up of risk management function
in order to assist the Audit Committee to discharge of its
aforesaid duties and responsibilities.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE AND REMUNERATION
On 2 February 2017, Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
(“Crowe Horwath”) has been appointed by the Board as the
new auditor of the Group to fill the casual vacancy
occasioned by the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) as the Company and Deloitte could not reach
a consensus on the audit fee for the financial year ended
31 December 2016. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 2 February 2017.

During the Year under Review, the services provided by
Crowe Horwath included the audit of consolidated financial
statements of the Group and financial statements of its
subsidiaries. The remuneration of the audit service rendered
by Crowe Horwath was mutually agreed in view of the scope
of services and amounted to HK$1,100,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Deloitte, as the external auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015 attended the 2015 annual
general meeting of the Company to respond to any enquiries
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the independent auditor’s report and the auditor’s
independence.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditors
of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the
independence of the external auditor to ensure the objectivity
in the financial statements. Members of the Audit Committee
are of the view that the Company’s external auditor is
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the Year under
Review. The auditor of the Company acknowledges its
reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the
financial statements for the Year under Review. The
statement made by the auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 70
to 82 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Tsui Fong (“Ms. Liu”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 16 August 2016. Ms. Liu is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.

The Company Secretary assists the Board in preparing the
agenda of the Board meetings and ensures all relevant rules
and regulations of the procedures of such meetings are
complied with. The Company Secretary files for and
maintains the detailed minutes of each Board meeting, and
makes such minutes available and accessible for all
Directors.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the Year under Review.
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TREBWME

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional documents

During the Year under Review, the Company did not make
any changes to the memorandum of association of the
Company and Bye-laws, and the current version of which
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good and effective
communication with its shareholders. Information in relation
to the Group is disseminated to shareholders in a timely
manner through a number of formal channels, which include
interim reports, annual reports, announcements, notices and
circulars, which are published on the Company’s own
website.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a
valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly with
the Company’s shareholders. The Directors actively seeks
to participate at the AGM and to answer any questions from
the Company’s shareholders. An AGM circular is distributed
to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting
out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures
(including procedures for demanding and conducting a poll)
and other relevant information.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders.

Way to convene a special general meeting

According to Bye-law 58, shareholders holding at the date
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board. The requisition shall be in writing stating the purposes
of the meeting, signed by the requisitionists, addressed to
the Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company.

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REERF

BE

REFERE AR R EERAD T2 ERE
FRAH R A FARR] - 30T IR AT BB AR B R A
AR Z@kEH -

ERRZBE
EERAREARERERIRENERE
Bt AEAEE Y AR EBRSBEREE
R AR AE  RERNAADEEATIEY
RERIRE R A B R -

ApmERBFRe((ERBFRE])NES
SEREARARREBZEETYR EEK
KEHR2ERRBFAE YO EARFRER
ZAEARE - BERBEFA® 28 KR BRIRIAF
RERTHEL21RBXTR2RME - HEH7
FHREARSRBRIAR RERF(BREX
UEEFANETRRZEF) REMHARER -

B RAEF
BRZHZETFRFIBRMT -

BRREAEZERAR
RIEBARMAESE REXFFEEARKHA
RIORARBEHERA T 2 —HHEEAR
ARBBERANEG LRE 2N Z IR BIAHK
EREBXEFTSARBRENAREG -AFEAR
NERMREREN BHBERFRXEN
NANBRBZIBERME WHARESS
HRFIME ©



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In accordance with the law of Bermuda, if the Board do
not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the said
date.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time put their enquires to the
Board in writing by sending to the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company or to the email address
investor@imagi.com.hk for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

In accordance with the law of Bermuda, Shareholders
representing (a) not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or (b) not less
than one hundred Shareholders shall have the right to put
forward resolution to be dealt with at a meeting at their
own expense.

The requisition shall be in writing stating (a) the proposed
resolution to be dealt with; and (b) a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposed resolution (if any), signed by the
requisitionists, addressed to the Board or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company.

The Board will give the Shareholders notice of the proposed
resolution and circulate any statement relating to the
proposed resolution.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT
Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of
applying and complying with the CG Code but about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate
culture. We will continue to review and, where appropriate,
improve our current practices on the basis of our experience,
regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders are also welcome.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Year under Review.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year under Review are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 83 and 84.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the Year under Review (2015: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year under
Review, which includes a discussion of financial and
operational review and particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred during the Year under
Review and up to the date of this annual report, is set out
in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. The review
forms part of this directors’ report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements, is set out on
page 204. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year under Review are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year under Review in the
share capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year under Review are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 87
to 89 and note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. During the Year under Review, no reserves had
been utilised for distribution. As at 31 December 2016, the
Company’s reserves that were available for distribution to
the Shareholders amounted to HK$1,061,415,000 (2015:
HK$830,524,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, held-for-trading investments of
approximately HK$586 million (31 December 2015: Nil) were
pledged to a financial institution to secure margin financing
facilities provided to the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year under Review, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Relationship is the fundamentals of business. In view of the
operation of the business, the Group did not have any major
customer and supplier that has significant influence on the
operations. However, the Group strived to maintain fair and
co-operating relationship with the customers and suppliers.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Continuous dialogue is maintained with stakeholders that
include customers, employees, regulators and the public.
The Company seeks to balance the views and interests of
these various stakeholders through constructive conversations
with a view to charting a course for the long-term prosperity
of the Company and the communities we touch.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone
of a company. The Company treasures its loyal and
industrious staff members. In addition, it adopts non-
discriminatory hiring and employment practices and strives
to provide a safe and healthy workplace.

Government/Community

We recognise the importance of contributing within the local
community and we encourage our people to develop close
links with charities, schools and other institutions, both
locally and nationally, to help to build more economically
sustainable local environments. Strenuous efforts are exerted
to ensure compliance with the laws and regulations of the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year under Review and up to the
date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin (appointed on 10 May 2016 and
(Acting Chairman) appointed as Acting Chairman
on 13 June 2016)

(appointed on 10 May 2016)

(appointed on 12 May 2016)

(appointed on 28 January 2016 and
resigned on 10 April 2017)

(appointed on 28 January 2016
and resigned on
16 August 2016)

(appointed on 1 May 2016 and
resigned on 15 June 2016)

(removed on 12 May 2016)

(removed on 15 April 2016)

Mr. Shimazaki Koji
Ms. Choi Ka Wing
Mr. Wong Yat Fai

Mr. Suen Yick Lun
Philip

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun

Mr. Shan Jiuliang**
Ms. Zhang Peng**
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Pak To (resigned and ceased to act as
Chairman on 23 February 2016)

Mr. Wen Di** (removed on 15 April 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Kwong Kai Sing (appointed on 28 January 2016)
Benny

Dr. Santos Antonio
Maria

Mr. Miu Frank H.

Mr. Chow Chi Wah
Vincent

Mr. Chan Yuk Sang

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Dr. Lam Lee G.

(appointed on 28 January 2016)

(appointed on 2 February 2016)
(appointed on 28 January 2016 and
resigned on 10 April 2017)
(resigned on 28 January 2016)
(resigned on 28 January 2016)
(resigned on 28 January 2016)

*%

Mr. Shan Jiuliang, Ms. Zhang Peng and Mr. Wen Di are under
administrative leave with effect as from 23 February 2016.
(Details can be referred to the Company’s announcement
dated 23 February 2016.)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, at least one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for specific term) shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
once every three years. Accordingly, Dr. Kwong Kai Sing
Benny will be retired from office as an independent non-
executive Director and offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin,
Mr. Shimazaki Koji, Ms. Choi Ka Wing and Mr. Miu Frank
H. who were appointed in addition to the Board as executive
Directors or independent non-executive Director respectively
will hold office as until the forthcoming annual general
meeting, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with the Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
REMUNERATION

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The Director’s remuneration policy is determined by the
Board with recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company and in accordance to market level, individual
qualifications, as well as contribution and commitments to
the Company. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and five individuals with highest remuneration are set out
in note 16 and note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Board has received from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all of them to be independent.

PREMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the relevant
statutes, every Director of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless by the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they incur in the execution of their duty or supposed
duty. Such provisions were in force during the course of
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained
insurance for the Directors against liabilities to third parties
that may be incurred in the course of performing their duties
as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, interests and short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) held by
the Directors and chief executives of the Company which
have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code to the Listing Rules are as follows:

(1) Long positions in the Shares
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of the

Company’s

Number of issued share

Name of Director Capacity Shares held capital (Notel)
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ExE8 g0 FEROEE (Ktat1)

Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin Beneficial owner 7,800,000 0.17%
Kitchell Osman Bin%t 4 EnEBA

Ms. Choi Ka Wing Beneficial owner 4,800,000 0.11%
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()

Long positions in the underlying Shares REERG TR
Approximate%
of the
Number of Company’s
underlying issued share
Name of Director Capacity Shares held capital (Notel)
HERQXTERITR
ALY B DL
EE=ER 54 FrisHBER B E (K1aE1)
Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin Beneficial owner 19,908,000 0.43%
Kitchell Osman Binst 4 EnEEA
Ms. Choi Ka Wing Beneficial owner 19,908,000 0.43%
BRFSAXLT EnEBA
Mr. Shimazaki Koji Beneficial owner 12,612,397 0.27%
IS U == &) 55 A EnEBA
Note: Hat -
1. It was based on 4,548,172,578 Shares in issue as at 1. WHERZE—XR"F+ZA=+—H2Z

31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or any of their associates had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would be required to be notified
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under in the heading
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, at no time during
the Year under Review was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of Shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the Year under
Review.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, as far as known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
had the interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares RRD 2 tF 2
Approximate%
of the
Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of shareholders Capacity Shares held capital (Notel)
HAATEBITR
AN B DL
RRERB 54 FrERAEE (HtaE1)
Murtsa Capital Management Limited Beneficial owner 380,000,000 8.36%
ExnEEA
Advance Beauty Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 353,401,600 7.77%
(Note 2)
Advance Beauty Holdings Limited FEEA A
(KizE2)
Notes: Bist -
1. It was based on 4,548,172,578 Shares in issue as at 31 1. IR ER-_ZE—R"F+_A=T—HZ

December 2016.

2. Advanced Beauty Holdings Limited is a company legally and
beneficially owned as 50% by Mr. Shan Jiuliang and 50%
by Ms. Zhang Peng, former executive Directors.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2016,
the Directors were not aware of any persons (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 16 August
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at an annual general meeting held on 11 June 2012,
the Company terminated the 2002 Scheme and adopted a
new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”), the purpose
of which is to reward eligible participants who have
contributed or are expected to contribute to the Group and
to encourage the participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. Particulars
of the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. No further
option shall be granted under the 2002 Scheme and all
outstanding options granted under the 2002 Scheme prior
to its termination were lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2015.

A summary of the movements of the share option granted
under the 2012 Scheme during the Year under Review is
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year under Review and up to the date of this
report, no Director is considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as
defined in the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year under Review.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in paragraphs headed “(i) Potential
continuing connected transaction” and “(vii) Revolving loan
facility and potential continuing connected transaction”
under the section headed “Other Information for the Year
under Review and up to the Date of the Annual Report”
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis section
on pages 20 and 26, the Directors are not aware of any
other connected transaction entered into during the Year
under Review and existed as at 31 December 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, during the Year under
Review and up to the date of this Report, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant influence on its business
and operations.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES
AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group recognises the importance of environmental
sustainability against modern ecological challenges.
Therefore, the Group committed to the long-term sustainability
of its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
We pursue this business approach by managing our business
prudently and executing management decisions with due
care and attention.

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. Recycling and use of eco-friendly
stationery, plus a series of measures to save paper and
energy, resulted in more efficient use of resources, as well
as reduction of waste.

In view of the nature of the business of the Group, the
Directors are of the opinion that no specific laws and
regulations related to environmental protection has significant
impact on the operations of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices of the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2015 were audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, while those for the year ended 31
December 2016 were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited who shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited as auditor of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Kitchell Osman Bin
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B 2B

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF IMAGI INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Imagi International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 83 to 203,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the basis for qualified opinion section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

U

As explained in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has not been able to access
the books and records of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
EfEREREEKIREER2AF (Xiamen Sunflower
Mingde Business Service Co. Ltd. (“Xiamen
Sunflower”)), since November 2015 as a result of the
loss of contact with a former executive director of
the Company who was also the legal representative
and sole director of Xiamen Sunflower. Against this
background, the investment in Xiamen Sunflower has
been accounted for on a cost less impairment basis
and has not been consolidated in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 or in the period from 1 January 2016 to 9 March
2016 (date of disposal). Under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” (“HKFRS 10”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. The financial statements of
Xiamen Sunflower should have been consolidated up
to the date of disposal because it was controlled by
the Company since its incorporation to the date of
disposal and accordingly the consolidated financial
statements have not been prepared in all material
respects in accordance with HKFRS. Had Xiamen
Sunflower been consolidated for the year ended 31
December 2015, many elements in the consolidated
financial statements would have been materially
affected.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B 2B

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

(i) (continued)

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed the disposal of
Imagi Jue Ming Limited (which holds the entire equity
interest in Xiamen Sunflower) during the year ended
31 December 2016 and the purchaser confirmed that
the conditions of the disposal were satisfied on 9
March 2016 (the date of disposal). In the absence of
reliable financial information of Xiamen Sunflower for
the period from 1 January 2016 to the date of disposal,
it is not practicable for us to quantify the effects of
the departure from the requirement of HKFRS 10 on
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016, including the amount in
relation to the gain or loss on disposal, or to assess
whether the disclosures with respect to Xiamen
Sunflower in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements were appropriate. Any adjustment that
would be required may have a consequential
significant effect on the net assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2015 and the loss and total
comprehensive expense attributable to the owners of
the Company for the years ended 31 December 2016

and 2015.

(ii) As disclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Board has been unable to locate the
agreement governing a purported loan or contact the
fund recipient and, as such, have been unable to
confirm the nature of the fund advance. The Group
has commenced legal proceedings against the fund
recipient for the recovery of the fund. Given this
circumstance, the Board has made full provision in
respect of this purported short-term loan for the year
ended 31 December 2015. Due to the lack of records
in respect of the transaction, we were unable to
assess whether the fund advance was properly
recorded, accounted for and disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements. Any adjustment
that would be required may have a consequential
effect on the net assets of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and the loss and total comprehensive
expense attributable to the owners of the Company

for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters
described in the basis for qualified opinion section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B 2B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

Refer to note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 113

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

During the year, the Group have made equity-settled
awards over 1,254,694,000 share options to
employees, directors and individuals other than
employees which have resulted in an equity-settled
share-based payments expenses of HK$63,881,000.
The amounts are principally determined by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments awarded.
For the share options granted to individuals other
than employees, the share options issued in
exchange for goods or services are measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, unless
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options
granted.

The valuations of the equity-settled share-based
payment expenses were carried out by an independent
professional valuer.

The choice of valuation inputs used to calculate the
initial fair value is one of the key judgmental areas
of our audit. This is deemed to be an area of
significant risk in view of the amounts involved, the
sensitivity of these amounts to a change in the
assumptions used and the technical complexity.

We understood the terms of share options scheme.
For the share options issued to individuals other
than employees, we considered that if the fair
value of the goods or services received could be
estimated reliably. We reviewed the minutes of
Board of Directors about the share options scheme
and assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
model used and evaluated the key assumptions
and methodologies used by the Group to value
the awards. We evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the external
professional valuer engaged by the Group and
the valuation methodology employed. We engaged
our valuation specialists to assist us in critically
assessing the key inputs, including risks-free rate
and share volatility which require significant
estimation and judgement. We evaluated the
adequacy of the external professional valuer’s
work and performed sensitivity analysis on
assumptions and input data used. We also
considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in relation to the key assumptions related to the
scheme.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B 2B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of convertible note receivables

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 119 to 120

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Convertible note receivables of HK$43,466,000
acquired are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. The assessment of the fair value of
convertible note receivables that are not publicly
traded techniques using
unobservable inputs, which require significant
estimation and judgement that can have a significant
effect on the asset’s valuation. The valuations of the
convertible note receivables were carried out by an

involves valuation

independent professional valuer.

We understood the terms of issue of convertible
note receivables. We obtained the information
upon which the valuations were based and
challenged the suitability of this information as
the basis for valuation. We evaluated the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
external professional valuer engaged by the Group
and the valuation methodologies employed. We
engaged our valuation specialists to assist us in
critically assessing the key inputs, including risk-
free rate, volatility and default rate which require
significant estimation and judgement. We evaluated
the adequacy of the external professional valuer’s
work and performed sensitivity analysis on
assumptions and input data used. We considered
the appropriateness, in accordance with relevant
accounting standards, of the Group’s disclosures
in relation to the key assumptions.

Management override of control

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

With the fact and circumstances as disclosed in
notes 23, 27 and 31, we considered the risk that
management could override the system of internal
controls within the business and misstate the

financial results and position of the Group.

We performed tailored procedures, including
analytical procedures and journal entry testing to
address the identified risk in respect of subjective
areas which were considered to be most
susceptible to management override.
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1B 2B

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015, were audited by another
auditor who issued a disclaimer of opinion on those
consolidated financial statements on 30 March 2016.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B 2B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

omissions,

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

B 2B AR S

BEMB R AR S MBHRROEME (o)

HEEFAKERE S ELENEER
- R(ERFRENELER) LT
FHEIEGSMAAEEAREEHYE B
SERBELERNELERRAMNER
THEMSHER WERMARKSFE
ERTHEEN SEEZEEHRS IR
FIBRAMBERRNMAERE L (W
HZBEBENR)EREFINER - R
WERBEZEENRE A HAESNE
ZREE - AT R E AR AT B
B BEEEEIRELE-

@
I~
=

BRI EBERII®R EBK
AT BREBELRGAMBHRRREE
BERQFINHENTARRTHEHBER S R
Effe

ERER EXERNEBIXBEY
MMEEMNTE D BENEZIRE A
HirEMBRRERER -BMEAER
g EENMETEEEZ  BADAYER
P EZERAEREE(E-

BB (AP BR) ERRERE RERES
REZER(BREMETZTERNHAIE
HERRE) BEZZBEQRE-

2016 3l BEEBZERERAF

81



82

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B 2B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2017

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number P00712
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HeZMEUWEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

AETE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1t-HLEE
2016 2015
ZE-RE “F-1F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
fist FET FAL
Revenue Wik 8 1,132 -
Other income ElA 9 4,626 8,862
Other gains and losses Hh=RER 10 40,527 (1,129)
Losses from changes in fair value of financial “*EF%H’EE;W%EZ
assets classified as held-for-trading ATEEHER 14 (90,746) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ) ﬁiﬁ’ﬁxﬁZﬂ@%ﬁ
investments (79,273) -
Impairment loss on a purported short-term ~ FiERHE R 2 HESE
loan 27 - (10,000)
Impairment loss on investment in an R—ArEGeARRBARZ
unconsolidated subsidiary REZRBEESR 23 - (64,985)
Forfeiture of a deposit paid for acquisition of WE—HREA AR &SRR
a target company 11 (150,000) -
Administrative expenses HS (133,987) (13,986)
Loss from operations LEFR (407,721) (81,238)
Finance costs BBKA 12 (2,530) -
Share of loss of a joint venture ElE—ALNLER 2 (7,311) -
Loss before tax BHAER 14 (417,562) (81,238)
Income tax expense ENYH 15 (10,967) -
Loss for the year FRER (428,529) (81,238)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income  Et2ME (BX),/ KA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HAS&EHHEZERZER
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating an RERARIMEESBES 2 ik
operation outside Hong Kong et 120 269
Release of fair value reserve upon disposal EE A ERE 7 A FERERR
of available-for-sale investments (1,761) 306
Net (loss)/gain on revaluation of available- ~ EfEAIEHERE 2 (B8)/ Ye 58
for-sale investments (544) 1,690
Other comprehensive (expense)fincome for the EREMRE(F%),/ A
year (2,185) 2,265
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRZERXAH (430,714) (78,973)

2016 ik
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEREEREMEEHBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE
2016 2015
ZE-XE “Z-1%
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
liF TEx TET
Loss for the year attributable to: EhEERNESE !
Owners of the Company AREER A (424,549) (81,238)
Non-controlling interests JEimpR (3,980) -
(428,529) (81,238)
Total comprehensive expense for the year (s q 2 EE L A% :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARREEA (426,734) (78,973)
Non-controlling interests IR (3,980) -
(430,714) (78,973)
2016 2015
ZE-RE “T-RF
(restated)
(E5)
Loss per share SRER
Basic and dilute (HK cents per share) EREEE(SRAN) 18 (94) (29)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HE-_T—

e PR R &
For the year ended 31 December 2016
ANEFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

BEtZAZT-HLFE

2016 2015
“E-RE —E-0%
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiit FiEr Fér
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER TS 19 33,774 98,069
Intangible assets BVEE 20 - -
Available-for-sale investments REERE 21 - 76,564
Investment in an unconsolidated subsidiary RA&&GAAEHER A 2HRE 23 - 23,843
Club debenture SEFH 24 1,300 1,300
Interest in a joint venture R-AeeEtk En 22 142,689 -
177,763 199,776
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and ERUEE  BE R
prepayments BRH 26 23,171 3,875
Purported short-term loan FERSER 27 - -
Amount due from a joint venture el -fFaet¥TE T -
Held-for-trading investments BHIEEERE 28 588,638 -
Convertible note receivables RS ATAREE 25 43,466 -
Available-for-sale investments tEERE 21 48,650 15,749
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRA S 29 246,446 625,964
950,442 645,588
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals EtERFERENER 7,009 3,983
Tax payable JEfITR 10,967 -
17,976 3,983
Net current assets RBEERE 932,466 641,605
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 1,110,229 841,381
Net assets EEFE 1,110,229 841,381
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31 December

BEtZAZT-HLFE

2016 2015
“E-RE —E-1F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiit TET Fér
Capital and reserves BRARGhE

Share capital R 30 22,7M 9,969
Reserves e 1,087,488 831,412

Total equity attributable to owners of the AATEEARLERAR
Company 1,110,229 841,381

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 203
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin
Kitchell Osman Bin%4
Director

E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—R"FT+_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAEAARLE
Attributable
Share  Investment to non-
Share Contributed Merger  Translation option  revaluation Other Accumulated controlling
capital  surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total equity
FERES
BE BAR%  A0BE  RERE BRERR REEMREE  HRBE  2HER Mt JEfe s
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAT TAT A TAT TAT AT Az TAT TAT AT AT
(Notea) ~ (Noteb)  (Noted)  (Notee (Note f) ~ (Note g) (Note ¢)
(Wita)  (itp)  (Wite)  (Wite)  (Witf)  (Witg) (Frie)
At 1 January 2015 RZ5-15-A-A 9,969 1,039,140 909 3,072 144 309 - (183,189) 920,354 - 920,354
Loss for the year EmER - - - - - - - (81,238)  (81,28) - (81,238)
Exchange differences on £EEEEMI%
translating an operation  HHIEE 73 E
outside Hong Kong £8 - - - 269 - - - - 269 - 269
Net gain on revaluation of EFTELERE
available-for-sale lhenet:|
investments - - - - - 1,690 - - 1,690 - 1,690
Release of fair value ~ REETHLERLE
reserve upon disposal  EEEATERE
of available-for-sale
investments - - - - - 306 - - 306 - 306
Other comprehensive ~ EREHZENA
income for the year - - - 269 - 1,996 - - 2,265 - 2,265
Total comprehensive ~ ERRELA/
income/expense) for the (FIx)£&
year - - - 269 - 1,996 - (81,238) (78,973) - (78,973)
Share options forfeited  R4EE
(note 32) (Pi32) - - - - (144) - - 144 - - -
At 31 December 2015 R=E-R%T-A
=+-f 9969 1,039,140 909 3,34 - 2,305 - (214283 841,381 - 841,381
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERRREARE
Attributable
Share  Investment to non-
Share Contributed Merger  Translation option  revaluation Other Accumulated controlling
capital  surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total equity
FERER
Rx BARS  AHEE  RERG BRERG REEGRG  RURE  ZiEE gt FEff fEs
HK$1000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T FET TAT TiEn T TET FiEr T T TET FiEn
(Notea) ~ (Noteb)  (Noted)  (Notee (Note f) ~ (Note g) (Note ¢)
(Hrita) (Hitb) (Hiita) (Hite) (Hik) (Hrig) (Hike)
At 1 January 2016 RZ5-E-A-A 9,969 1,039,140 909 3,341 - 2,305 - (214,283) 841,381 - 841,381
Loss for the year EnER - - - - - - - (o451 (24549 (3980)  (428,529)
Exchange differences on EEEEMIZ
translating an operation  FFIE 7 it
outside Hong Kong 28 - - - 120 - - - - 120 - 120
Net loss on revaluation of EfFTIAHEREZ
available-for-sale EREE
investments - - - - - (544) - - (544) - (544)
Release of fair value ~ AHETHLEERE
reserve upon disposal ~ EEEATERE
of available-for-sale
investments - - - - - (1,761) - - (1,761) - (1,761)
Other comprehensive  FRAMEE
income/(expense) for the 4UA/(F%)
year - - - 120 - ) - - %) - %)
Total comprehensive ~ FAZE
income/(expenses) for  WA/(B%)
the year 85 - - - 120 - PR3 - (4519 (26734 (3980)  (430,714)
Contribution from FiRERRE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 175,000 175,000
Shares issued EEIRA 12,007 557,596 - - - - - - 569,603 - 569,603
Transaction cost EAEBRES
attributable to issue of X FFA
new ordinary shares - (12,410) - - - - - - (12,410) - (12,410)
Equity-settled share-  WEZEEZ
based transactions RS - - - - 65,726 - - - 65,726 - 65,726
Exercise of shares options /7(FEI%1E 765 110,342 - - (34,464) - - - 76,643 - 76,643
Acquisition of additional 4 Unimagi
interest in Unimagi Investment Limited
Investment Limited (TUnimagi)
(‘Unimag") 25 - - - - - - ) - B8 (710200 (175,000
At 31 December 2016 H=F-7F+ZA
=t-R 22,741 1,694,668 909 3,461 31,262 - (3,980)  (638,832) 1,110,229 - 1,110,229
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Note:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Pursuant to section 46(2) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and with effect after the passing of a special
resolution at a special general meeting held on 29 August
2011, the Company’s entire amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account and the deemed contribution
reserve account were cancelled (the “Share Premium
Cancellation”). Upon the Share Premium Cancellation
becoming effective, the directors of the Company authorised
the transfer of the credit arising therefrom to the contributed
surplus account of the Company and to set off the
accumulated losses of the Company in a manner permitted
by the laws of Bermuda and the bye-laws of the Company.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of shares of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of a previous corporate reorganisation.

Unimagi was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 6
June 2016. On 8 June 2016, Dai Gor Capital Limited (“DGCL”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and Satinu Capital
Limited (“Satinu Capital”), an independent third party,
subscribed 575 and 175 ordinary shares of Unimagi at a
consideration of HK$575,000,000 and HK$175,000,000,
respectively. On 8 June 2016, DGCL and Satinu Capital held
76.7% and 23.3% equity interest of Unimagi which became
a subsidiary of the Company. On 30 June 2016, DGCL entered
into a share buyback agreement (the “Forward Contract”)
with Satinu Capital, pursuant to which DGCL has agreed to
buy, and Satinu Capital has agreed to sell, 23.3% of the
issued share capital of Unimagi, being the entire equity
interest of Unimagi held by Satinu Capital, at the consideration
of HK$175,000,000. The transaction was completed on 4
July 2016.

Translation reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars), which are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the foreign operations.

Share option reserve represents the recognition of share
options of the Group determined at the date of grant of the
share options.

Investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative fair
value changes of available-for-sale investments until they are
disposed of or impaired.

Other reserve represents the difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
consideration paid for the acquisition of additional interest
in Unimagi.
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MERRBER
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

90

2016 2015
“B-RE “T-n%
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
frit FEr TEL
OPERATING ACTIVITIES gy
Loss before tax HagR (417,562) (81,238)
Adjustments for: ET5HE
Share of loss of a joint venture BlE-HaEt$FE 7,311 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and %¥ B REERERS
equipment 10,470 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AfMERE  AERSE
investments 79,273 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNBAF M (32,153) -
Losses from changes in fair value of financial ~ HEAHEEEHKEEL
assets classified as held-for-trading ATEEHER 90,746 -
Finance costs ) FWK 2,530 -
Forfeiture of a deposit paid for acquisition of ~ WE—FBEZRAFR MRS RN
a target company 150,000 -
Dividend income form available-for-sale AfHERE RERA
investments (2,167) -
Dividend income from held-for-trading REEERE ZREMA
investments (858) -
Interest income FISHA (1,500) (8,328)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses  MIEZ A E 2 gL (0% H 63,881 -
Depreciation of property, plant and W% - BERXENE
equipment 5,976 2,380
Impairment loss on a purported short-term FrEREETESR
loan 27 - 10,000
Impairment loss on investment in an R-AAGE ABRBLAR ZRERH
unconsolidated subsidiary EER 23 - 64,985
Fair value gain on revaluation on convertble ~ EfTARZEz ATENE
notes (18,099) -
(Gain)/loss recognised upon sale of available- ﬁE—H/ HERERERLZ
for-sale investments i)/ B8 (1,761) 306
Operating cash flows before movements in EERSEPNLETENE
working capital (63,913) (11,895)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, ﬁfﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ&
deposits and prepayments BiEROEM)/ D (17,542) 663
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading ﬁﬁ%f’ﬁnﬁﬁ EFETE
investments 1,209,712 -
Purchases of held-for-trading investments BERBEEERE (1,715,338) -
Purchase of convertible note receivables RERWITARZE (23,200) -
Increase in other payables and accruals EHERERETEREN 3,010 941
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES S8 7254 54 (607,271) (10,291)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-_ZT—RE+-A=1+—HILEFE
2016 2015
“E-RE ZE-RE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FEr AT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBARMEHE 128,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of an unconsolidated ~ HE—EAGA AKKBATMETE
subsidiary ) 23,843 -
Capital injection to an unconsolidated TAE-BARGEABNBAF
subsidiary 23 - (88,829)
Purported short-term loan FBEHER 27 - (10,000)
Purchase of club debenture BECHER - (1,300)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENX BREREE (47,891) (830)
Interest received %‘J 1,500 9,341
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale  HEF L ERAMEHE
investments 91,769 8,234
Deposit paid for acquisition of a target KE-BERARERES
company ) (150,000) -
Capital injection to a joint venture HEE-RREhE (150,000) -
Advance o a joint venture PAT-MAELE (1) -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEMHRINERE (127,923) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBMAZREFE (230,773) (83,383)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES wEEy
Proceeds from exercise of share options TRBREMSTE 76,643 -
Proceeds from issue of shares EIROAETE 396,703 -
Expenses on issue of shares BRhx (12,410) -
Interest paid ERFE (2,530) -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ REEBFERLFE 458,406 -
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREEEEERIFE
EQUIVALENTS (379,638) (93,674)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R-B-BZRERRESERER
1 JANUARY 625,964 719,369
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXggoyE 120 269
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Rt-E=t-HzBeREE5EEE
31 DECEMBER
Represented by bank balances and cash BRITEBRAS 246,446 625,964
2016 3 BEEBZRERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar, which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments
and new standards which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not
been early adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant

to the Group.
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure
Initiative?®
Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Gustomers'
HKFRS 16 Leases?
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based payment: Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Classifications to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019, with earlier application permitted

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017, with earlier application permitted
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed
its assessment, further impacts may be identified in
due course and will be taken into consideration when
determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which
transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to
the Group are:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the retrospective quantitative
effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group
expects that its financial assets currently measured
at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) will continue with their respective classification
and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The Group’s available-for-sale investments, including
those currently stated at cost less impairment, will
either be measured as fair value through profit or loss
or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to fulfillment of
the designation criteria).

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and the
Group does not have any such liabilities.

This new impairment model may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade
receivables and other financial assets. However, a
more detailed analysis is required to determine the
extent of the impact.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEZZT—RFT+A=1T—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
The directors do not anticipate that the application
of the HKFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces
a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in
the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

Currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some
leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on
the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account for all
leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses
would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into
or terminated between now and the adoption of
HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS
16 before its effective date of 1 January 2019.
However, early adoption of HKFRS 16 is only permitted
if this is no earlier than the adoption of HKFRS 15.
It is therefore unlikely that HKFRS 16 will be adopted
before the effective date of HKFRS 15, being 1
January 2018.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. Specially, the
amendments require the following changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising
from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or
other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

2.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
FERFET RAER] BB B HMEE
B ([ERMH®REERL]) ©)

BEE_ZF-A"F+-A=t—HLFE
© 28 5 18 5 R AE AV HT R] AEMERT &8
MBHELEATTENTE (&)
BEBUBHEERF165HE ()
B HRELRNFIGRBGERZZEN
SEESYE BELARBHECRED
BARKEHEN) ABAN G RIE - EA
e RARRECEERBEEM:
R FENERANERSRERFAH
5] - NEREF RETEFAFAN DM - BA
EEZEEREE ZFAERELRINIR
By 2= &8 I 7% ¥l o 22 RI 55 165 R 4 HA
IR IEMEREEREREEEL
HER ETRABEVHRESEINS
1658 R A S EHAREELENTEER
BEMNERE-

AEEBTIEZERARNERBEH _-_F
—NE—-R—BRABEHBRELE
AIZE165% - AT BEAM B RS ERNE
165 AR FFETNERNRABTEMBRE
R FAGRE R - At BAEM |
FERNFE16E N ARAIREN B BM B E
ERIE1FHAERB BRI —T—N\F
—H— BRI -

BB ERET R AT EBHE

BEIEREBELEE  UEHB®RE
FREVFERETDMEENERES
B pIERSRERERSREELED
BH KRR BT EREERRE R
EXNNTEEEZS  RMERERE
B ()EEE BB AR S EMmE
ERESIEEENED  (iiEXEZEFHH
FE (WVATEES  R(v)EMbEE-

2016 3l BEEBZERERAF

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Possible impact of new or revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(continued)

The application of the amendments will result in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing
activities, specifically reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position for liabilities arising
from financing activities will be provided on application.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments provide guidance on how an entity
determines, in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes, whether to recognise a deferred tax asset in
relation to unrealised tax losses of a debt instrument
that is classified as an available-for-sale financial
asset in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement under
certain specific facts and circumstances.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies These
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

Ordinance. financial

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

I[tems included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
currency”). These
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), rounded to the nearest thousand
except for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

“functional financial

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for held-for-trading investments
and financial assets designated as fair value
through profit or loss see (note 3(l)), which are
stated at their fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The financial
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the

consolidated statements

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

(c)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—

3.

==
= —

=3

NETZA=Z+T—HILEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair values of the
consideration received or receivable.

Royalty income from the licensing of trademarks
and copyrights is generally recognised in
periods when royalties are reported by licensees
about the related product sales.

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s rights to receive
payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for administrative purpose,
are stated in the consolidated financial
statements of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets less their residual values
over their estimated useful live, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property,
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

plant and equipment is

and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

f)

Leasing (continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received
to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it
is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straightline basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Functional currency of a group entity is changed
only if there is a change to the underlying
transactions, events and conditions that are
relevant to the entity. Such effect is accounted
for prospectively at the date of change when
the entity translates all items into the new
functional currency using the prevailing
exchange rate at the date of the change. The
resulting translated amounts for non-monetary
items are treated as their historical cost.
Exchange differences arising from the translation
of a foreign operation previously recognised in
comprehensive income are not reclassified from
equity to profit or loss until the disposal of the
operation.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

(9)

(h)

U]

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong
are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (that is, Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

if any, are

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of options that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to individuals other than
employees

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, unless that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case the goods or services received are
measured by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve), when the Group
obtains the goods or when the counterparties
render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of options
that are expected to vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

reflects the revised

For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

)]

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences arise
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)]

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

associated with

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each of reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)]

(k)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Intangible assets

Computer graphic imaging (“CGI”)
animation pictures

CGl animation pictures, which represent CGI
animation pictures in which the Group retains
ownership, consist of film rights of completed
CGl animation pictures and CGIl animation
pictures of which the productions are still in
progress.

CGI animation pictures in progress are stated
at costs incurred to date, including all the costs
directly attributable to the CGI animation
pictures in progress and borrowing costs
capitalised, impairment
losses. Upon completion and release of the CGl
animation pictures, the costs are amortised
based on the proportion of actual income
earned during the year to the estimated total
income expected to be generated from the
relevant CGIl animation pictures.

less accumulated

Completed CGIl animation pictures are stated
at cost incurred to date, representing all the
costs directly attributable to the completed CGI
animation pictures and borrowing costs
capitalised, less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

3.

FESHBE #@)

1)

(k)

BE (E)

BIHA MR FE R TR 1R 2 FE R -
PR IE B AL E A 2 WA R RERR 3K
EENEaTHERAIABAR
RUEIE ST - BIVEE K2 R 3E 75 18 I%
DAREMEEBAREEER
amT R MERE XK G
Z W &F A2 BN IR SR
ERIE AENBYESTAR
Badth e

BILEE
BHER ([EBHER]) BIE

ERERDERAKENGHEHE
BERZEMERDE BREERT
REMEGRBERBER 2B
ERBEZR A

BER 2 ERERDEIIRRE
SEEEZKRA @%@W#Z
BERERDEEREE 22X
ARCEREARZEERAN B
A%Hﬁgﬁﬂﬁ SERK M BT

BMERDER NARFANE
%%W%A@ﬁ%%@ﬁ@ i
ERBEEL ZHFTRRAZE
{5 8 5H

ExXKEMERBENIRRCS
BEEEZKA B2 EREME
GBBEEREE22BXRANRE
BABARZEERA  BRG#
#H % Rt R EE BRI -

h‘:“



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

m

Intangible assets (continued)

Computer graphic imaging (“CGI”)
animation pictures (continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T- AF+-A=t+-HILFE

3. FEETEE®)

(k)

U]

BLEE (&
EHELREE ()

BEEXRHERINEBHAR
ERIHETEELZEMNRR
HUHBR - BURER B EEE
EZBmRZEELEMGNRE
FREHRAEZZRTE I
MREUHHER B ER IR R ER -

BB ITA
E-REBERKNATAASHK
X 2RI 77 s e R 75 B B S B
BafE-

MBEERVBABNIRAF
Bt -ARBRBTHHEE
B RBEMEEEEZXHK
K-RNTHEAERUBEES
MHBEGRERBAME) 2R
FEFPMAIINE - WERQF
Bt ABRZVBEEXMBA
BEZEEZRZRARERIE
o R o

2016 3l BEEBZERERAF

117



118

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(1 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the three categories, including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial

assets and loans and receivables.

classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest

basis for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

m

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial asset is

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

contingent consideration that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies,

held-for-trading, or

it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading

if:

it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset

held for trading or contingent consideration that
may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;
or

e M RR MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTEE @)

(continued)
()  Financial instruments (continued) ) #MEIA (&

120

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

° the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” permits
the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other
gains or losses” line item.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified as (a) loans and receivables,
(b) held-to-maturity investments, (c) held for
trading or (d) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MBEE (&)
FBRm RN FEINEZAEE
E (&)

s BRUBEEBKAERRA
BEAEE2EHRAR
EEIRERBIEAFE
Az — B EES —
MBS BB KR R R A
EF UV RZEEERAA
MREHBEBANFAOEZE
Bk

o  HEAMAE EIALEK
ARTTETAREZEH M
BB E st BRI F395% &
T AR NMTE|ER
ENEEHAW(EEREA
B)RERBBBRERAF
B8R -

BERBHRBE A FEINRNTBEE
ERAFEAR BEHTERK
Bz EARmEEN RS E
R MBE R Z WA NEIEF
B BRREERMBEERNZE
AR B A - sE AT E i am sk
EiE]EE -

RN ENTEEE
AHEERBEEEEAN R
& B R JE R (a) B AR UK
B b)FEEHRE - ) EFE
BB AFEFABRZMB
BEZIFITETA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

m

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets (continued)

Debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are
traded in an active market are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS
monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables
receivables are non-derivative

Loans and
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including other receivables,
refundable deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(1 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

m

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of impairment loss recognised is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to
be impaired, cumulative gains or
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

losses

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss

e M RR MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

m

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in according with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

m

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only

when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its
entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

financial
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

(m)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGUs,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the assets is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been

impairment

determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)
Interim financial reporting and impairment
(continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period,
or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income

and not profit or loss.

(n) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group

if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(i) has significant influence over the

Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

U

(ii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel
services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

(o) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
board of directors (the chief operating decision
maker) for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

(p)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

(p)

Investments in joint ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p)

Investments in joint ventures (continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a joint venture. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—

3.
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NETZA=Z+T—HILEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(r)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing cost are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting

a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets
and liabilities that do not constitute a business,
the Group recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase
price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other individual identifiable

identifies and

assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next reporting period.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts
which are the higher of the value in use or the fair
value less costs to sell of the CGU to which intangible
assets have been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows vary against
what were expected or changes in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future
estimated cash flows, a material reversal of previously
recognised impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the
intangible assets is HK$Nil (2015: HK$Nil), net of
accumulated amortization and impairment of
HK$287,405,000 (2015: HK$287,405,000).

Valuation of convertible note receivables

The fair values of convertible notes that are not traded
in an active market are determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select
a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the
convertible note receivables is HK$43,466,000 (2015:
HK$Nil).

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Income tax expenses

Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. The ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current income tax liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the
tax payable is HK$10,967,000 (2015: HK$Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with share capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-_ZT—RE+-A=1+—HILEFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. H®¥IA
a) Categories of financial instruments a) BT EZ2DE
2016 2015
—E—RE & — R F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FHEITL
Financial assets EJH%EE‘

At FVTPL BRAFEFARR
Held-for-trading investments HIEEB®RE 588,638 -
Convertible note receivables FEU AT AR R 43,466 _
\ 632,104 -
Available-for-sale investments ﬂfﬁﬁ’%?ﬁ’éﬁ 48,650 92,313

Loans and receivables BRI EWFRIE

(including cash and cash (BEReRRS
equivalents) Z£EER) 266,743 628,601
947,497 720,914
Financial liabilities MHAE
Amortised cost B SH R AN 6,914 3,817
b) Financial risk management objectives and b) R EEEERBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading
investments,
purported short-term loan, amount due from a
refundable

convertible note receivables,

joint venture, other receivables,
deposits, bank balances and cash, purported
short-term loan and other payables. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies
Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

6.

MBIA (&)
b) MEEREEESERBEE

5 E B

(i)

B RER
AEBETHBRARHES
MINEETECEREER
BE EAKEEHINES
Rz AINEEEZER
BEMBERMEHRZ
BREENT :

Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE ZZE-0F —2-XE —E-1E
HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
United State dollars (“USD”) E(E ) 606 123,096 - -
Euro (“EUR”) B8l 4,640 7,599 - -
Sensitivity analysis BRE T
The Group is mainly exposed to exchange NEBFTEFBE B THE
rate fluctuations in HK$ against USD and 7T N BT 7 E RO &) &

EUR. As HKD is pegged with USD under
the Linked Exchange Rate System, the
management of the Company is of the
opinion that the Company’s exposure to
USD is minimal and accordingly, no
foreign currency sensitivity analysis on
USD is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YR E R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

b)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase
and decrease in EUR against 5% (2015:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currencies denominated monetary items.
A positive/(negative) number below
indicates a decrease/(increase) in post-
tax loss.

HE-_T—

NETZAZ+T—HIEEFE

6. BI¥EIRA #)
b) BEEREEAEERKE (£)

miEmEpE ()

(i)

B R (&)
HEE T (4B

TR AEEHETH
BILTEARTHSR(ZF
—RFE:5%) 2 HREE
HEbN%(ZE—RHF:
5%)JhAERAEBEE A
BEMINERBREFRAZ
BRELE - EEEEY
SNETE R AT RE S IR BB 2
FH-BRESNERRE
NINEFHEZ MR N E
BT - THIIEE(BE)
NGB E & E R, (3
am)e

EUR
BT
2016 2015
—E-AF —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Increase in foreign exchange fE& FFt
rates 232 380
Decrease in foreign exchange bEE & Tk
rate (232) (380)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—AF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

6.

b)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
short-term bank deposits (see note 29
for details of these short-term bank
deposits) for both years and available-
for-sale fixed rate instruments (see note
21 for details of these available-for-sale
investments) for 2015.

The management considers the fair value
interest rate risks are insignificant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis on such
risks has been prepared.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investment in equity securities
listed in Hong Kong classified as held-
for-trading investments, convertible note
receivables designated as at FVTPL and
unlisted equity investments. The
management manages its exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis has been presented
on equity price risk arising from unlisted
equity investments because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that fair
value cannot be measured reliably.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk arising from equity
securities listed in Hong Kong and
convertible note receivables designated
as at FVTPL at the end of the reporting
period.

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

6.

MBIA (&)
BRREREEERREE (&)

b)

migEpE (&)

(ii)

(i)

& 2

AEBRMEFEHRTE
BEHRTER(EBEZSE
RHBRTERZFERL
MM F29) R —T—REF
RAREETETA(ER
ZEHEEREZFHE
FH2EWE21)EmE A FE
& [ R

EEERSRFENEME
BMANRE RLERE
B\ A L B R E AT

EiE R
AEBRKED B BIFE
EERENEBS LTMRA
BE EEERBREA
FAEYIRA B AT B R
BRIELETRAKEMEA
RRERKR -BEEESA
HRRRTRMNEEALS
& 1 & g o

HBEDH

I 48 2 A I LR AR
BELNRER R R 8
Exoi REAREGEMRA
FEMGFHEERK AR
AEER/ERTFEREE

CEDEE

AN BRRE DT T ER R
FEHMREEL LHRAE
HZREEEBBREAF
BB B AT B R R E
ELENRERREE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If equity prices of equity securities listed in
Hong Kong had been 5% higher/lower (2015:
5% higher/lower), post-tax loss (2015: loss) for
the year would decrease/increase (2015:
decrease/increase) by approximately
HK$30,075,000 (2015: nil). If the equity prices
of convertible note receivables had been 5%
higher, and assuming other inputs to the
valuation model of convertible note receivables
and held constant, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would decrease by
HK$4,015,000 (2015: nil). If the equity prices
of convertible note receivables had been 5%
lower, the post-tax loss would increase by
HK$3,748,000 (2015: nil) for the year.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
price risk as the exposure at the end of the
reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of
financial assets at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequeate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regards, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significant
reduced.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T- AF+-A=t+-HILFE

6. BI¥EIRA #)

b)

BBREREEERREE (&)

BBESN (&)
MEEETRAFZTHFORE L
Ft/TH%( T —FR 4% +
./ TH%5%) RFEERBRE %
BER(ZZ—AF: B5B)BR
LN ZE—RE B S
# 90 ) 930,075,000/ jo( — =
—FE ) W TR R E
HIRR(E EFH5% -« W IR R FEUR AT 2
IR iR B R A /O H 88 A B
BETE BE_T—XF1+=
A=+—BLFENKRTEERE
#55 44,015,0008 L ( — T —F
FoE) BT R E IR MR
BETR5% * A FEMBRTLZE R
#5 1% 413,748,000 L ( — T —F
F )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The credit risk on the AFS debt investments
as at 31 December 2015 is limited because
majority of the AFS debt investments have high
credit rating assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Other than the concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks with high credit ratings and convertible
note receivables, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. HMKEIRA &
b)  Financial risk management objectives and b) HERBREEEEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEBELREM (&)
Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
effective Less than  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month cash flows 2016

RZE-AE
AHEHRE  TZR=t-H
MEFHERAR -BANR HEsE ZEEE

% HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TExn FiEn TEn
At 31 December 2016 R=B-AEtZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEHEER
Other payables HitEE - 6,014 6,014 6,014
Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
effective Less than undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month cash flows 2015
W_E-Rf
AEBERE  TZA=t-H
METIERNE —f@ANRA RELE LKA
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i 77 77
At 31 December 2015 RZF-EFtZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTEREER
Other payables EfEATE - 3817 3817 3817
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

1. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

2. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

3. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments, including convertible note
receivables which are categorised into Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports
directly to the directors and the audit committee.
A valuation report with analysis of changes in
fair value measurement is prepared by the team
at each interim and annual reporting date, and
is reviewed and approved by the directors.
Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the chief financial officer, directors and the
audit committee is held twice a year, to coincide
with the reporting dates.
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YR E R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. H¥IR #®)

c)  Fair value measurements of financial c) HBIAZATEFE
instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets FrEELXREMEZELFETEZLY
and financial liabilities that are measured at BEERMBAEMEZ A FE
fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets are REBHDUBEERNSREH
measured at fair value at the end of each RNIBZAFEETE T%?Ef\ﬁm
reporting period. The following table gives ZENBEERNTENAEZE
information about how the fair values of these (0 B 2 (8 B i K2 P A 8 A X
financial assets are determined (in particular, )

the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at

RUTREZATE
2016 2015 Fair
ZE-RE 0 ZE-1% value  Valuation Significant
HK$'000 HK$:000 higrarchy  technique unobservable inputs
FEn T  DTEER B EXTUBERANE

Available-for-sale investments in debt securities

92,313 Level 1 Quoted bid price in an N/A

RERES  TRIERE -0 active market il
RETHREAR
Held-for-trading investments 588,638 - Level 1 Quoted market closing N/A
REEERE -9 prices in an active market FEE
e UG
Convertible note receivables
EHAARZE
- issued by China Agri-Products Exchange 41,299 - Level 3 Binomial model 2016: Discount rate: 15.66%
Limited o0 R Volatlty: 58.67% (2015: N/A)
- BPERERRAERAARA ZE-NEHRE 1566%
HifE : 58.67%
(ZF-1%:MER)
- issued by Up Energy Development Group 2,167 - Level 3 Binomial model 2016: Discount rate: 30.62%
Limited =0 ElER Volatlty: 88.21% Default Rate:
- BRI RERRERRAREN 35.54% (2015: N/A)

TR BBE 30.62%
I8 88.21%

EHR : 35.54%
(Z5-1%:TER)

632,104 92,313
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, there were no transfers between level 1
and 2, or transfers into or out of level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

Note:

A 5% increase in volatility holding all other variables
constant would increase the carrying amount of the
convertible note receivables by HK$676,000 (2015:
nil). A 5% decrease in volatility holding all other
variables constant would decrease the carrying
amount of the convertible note receivables by
HK$617,000 (2015: nil).

A 5% increase in discount rate holding all other
variables constant would decrease the carrying amount
of convertible note receivables by HK$6,615,000. A
5% decrease in discount rate holding all other
variables constant would increase the carrying amount
of the convertible note receivables by HK$7,409,000
(2015: nil).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

c)

NOTES TO THE

CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

MBTA (&)

Fair value measurements of financial c) WUBIAZATENE (&)

instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurement

Investment at fair value through profit or loss

BERAFETBZHE

BRBRBAFEIERZRE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
At the beginning of the year RF¥] - _
Additions =N 25,367 -
Gain recognised in profit or  FANERER KU E
loss during the year 18,099 -
At the end of the year RER 43,466 _
Net gain for the year included &7 & BERIZ N FED
in profit or loss for RZIEETABRGIA
investments designated as at HE i EsER) AF
fair value through profit or JEWa F 5
loss (included in other gains
or losses) 18,099 _

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair
value

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

WHENFETSBZIBEEER
MBEEZAFE

RRAREERRNEFEATBHRE
IR B AN ER T E
EEMFREZREABEEELAYF
[ERIEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—

7.

8.

F—FT-A=t+—RILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

On 28 January 2016, the board of directors resolved
to develop integrated financial services including the
provision of securities brokerage services, placing and
underwriting services, corporate finance advisory
services, investment advisory and management
services, margin financing and money-lending
business, securities investment and proprietary
trading. During the current year, the Group started
its proprietary trading activities related to equity
securities listed in Hong Kong, which become the
principal business of the Group. The proprietary
trading activities are carried out through wholly owned
subsidiaries. The Group has been operating with only
one reportable and operating segment: trading of
securities segment engaged in the purchase and sales
of securities investments. The chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”) monitors the consolidated revenue
and changes in fair value of financial assets classified
as held-for-trading investments and financial assets
fair value through profit or loss for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment.
Accordingly, no further segment information has been
presented.

7 RRE R
RZFB-—RF-AZ+/\B EFgR
FEREETRRBEES BRIEHRE
R HRFS ~ BLE KBRS - m%mﬁéﬁ
RS RER A RERRS  RE
TRERBEER R ?fﬂxé“&EM“
5o MAEE - $Elﬁﬂﬁu/ﬁﬁ_?§ﬂi§%
EHRABSFZBER SRS WK
AEEZEBEXH BEXHEHES

2EHBATMR - AREELL— BT
BERMEAERE BARRA
REBFRAZEE  TEBEREE

(TE2EERE %J)E*TI??/:.\J%Z £ AR
"*E%?ﬂ’ﬁ,\,jxﬁzﬁﬁ‘kéﬁb/{&ﬁz
RNHEFABR  MBEEZ A FEER
B 5EETERIELRREAN G -H
It BEEZIE— T D EEEF

REVENUE =
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Dividend income from held-for- BIEBERE ZRBUWA

trading investments 1,132 -
1,132 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YR E R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

OTHER INCOME 9. HflrA
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interest income on convertible note EWRAIHRALEE 2 F| 8
receivables A 523 _
Interest income on available-for-sale AJfHERE 2 F S WA
investments 1,097 4,771
Interest income on loan receivables BWERKIRITERZ
and bank deposits MEIA 403 3,557
Dividend income from available-for- A/ ERE 2B EUA
sale investments 2,167 -
Royalty income FRFEIA 436 505
Others HAth — 29
4,626 8,862
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Htt=mKEE
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—AHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair value gain on convertible note FEMAIIAARZEIE 2 AFE
receivables W e 18,099 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — KB A R 2 e
(note 36) (K1#£36) 32,153 -
Gain/(loss) recognised upon disposal & FI it HE R E R H#ER
of available-for-sale investments 2 W,/ (E1E) 1,761 (306)
Net foreign exchange losses bE % B 1R (1,016) (823)
Impairment loss on property, plant  #15 ~ FiE K& 2 RE
and equipment 518 (10,470) _
40,527 (1,129)
2016 i EHEEZERER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

11.

FORFEITURE OF A DEPOSIT PAID FOR
ACQUISITION OF A TARGET COMPANY
On 10 March 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Freeman Financial Investment
Corporation (the “Vendor”), an independent third party,
for the acquisition of a target company engaging in
the securities trading business (the “Acquisition”). The
target company and the Vendor are wholly owned by
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited (“Freeman”),
an independent third party. The total consideration
of the Acquisition is HK$1,800 million which will be
satisfied, among others, by a cash deposit of HK$150
million (the “Deposit”) and the balance of HK$1,650
million will be satisfied by the issuance of promissory
notes by the Company on the date of completion of
the Acquisition. The Deposit is not refundable except
under the circumstances that (i) if the shareholders
of Freeman shall have voted against the Acquisition
in its extraordinary general meeting, the Vendor shall
refund the Deposit in full, without interest, to the
Company; or (ii) if the shareholders of the Company
shall have voted against the Acquisition in the
Company’s special general meeting, the Vendor shall
be entitled to forfeit half of the Deposit. On 12 March
2016, the Company paid the Deposit to the Vendor.
On 15 April 2016, the Listing Division of the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Division”) ruled that the
Acquisition is a reverse takeover and would be treated
as if it were a new listing applicant if the Company
proceeded with the Acquisition. On 25 April 2016 and
3 June 2016, the Company seek advices from the
Listing Committee and the Listing (Review) Committee
of the Stock Exchange, respectively, to review the
ruling of the Listing Division. The decision by both
committees upholding the Listing Division’s decision.
In this regard, the Company and the Vendor agreed
the Acquisition cannot proceed and has to be
terminated and the Deposit was forfeited in full in
accordance with its terms in the Agreement. As a
result, HK$150 million was written off and charged
to profit or loss in the current year.
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ARA(TWBEED-BERAINES
HBVYE=FTRIZRZERBERAA
(ERDN2EHEF - WESHEZARE
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Bl DUBRe N #hE
1,650,000,0007% 7T # B 78 2 7] 7R 78 B
WHEBAMBETALERIN BT
MAF RN HRETARE : (VW ERK
ERERRFINAE EREREKIES
B BERAERARRREERERS (T
FHRLE D) (i) AR RIRRAR AR F]
ZRRFEFR ARG EREREKESEIE -
AlERERER—FRE - R_T—RX
F=ZA+=ZRA ARARERAEHLZTiE
T RN_TE-—RFHATHB B
FAR EmRDBORKEBESEER —E
R EEITE R AR B EITH B EIE -
R AW —IER FTHRF -R_F
—ANFNAZ+THRARERZZE—RFEAX
R=B ARBHRSKEBRM ETE
Eghktm(BRZ)ZE@ 28R UEB
REMBZER MEEZEGEL 2R
FEURIFLITMEEGZRE BB
H ARREESRBWESERZEE
T AL - MRS B RIBZ B HIEK
2 #8524 o A1kt - 150,000,000 7T A A
FEMEE LR B PR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

12. FINANCE COSTS 12, BB
2016 2015
—E-AF —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest on borrowing and overdrafts &8 &3& X ELE 2 78
(total borrowing costs on financial (IR AFEF AR
liabilities that are not at fair value < HREZBEEX
through profit or loss) ) 2,530 -
13. DIVIDEND 13. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year BE_Z—R"F+-_A=1T—HLFE
ended 31 December 2016, nor has any dividend been I Mk 3 S ORI AR B - B MEHR
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2015: AR IR R (E R E (= F — A%
HKS$Ni). B T

2016 F3f BHERZERARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

14. LOSS BEFORE TAX 14. BRFAIEE
2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiiT FHIT

Loss before tax has been arrived at FRTEATEE S HIBR 71

after charging: BH -
Auditor’s remuneration =B AT & 1,100 1,800
Directors’ remuneration (note 16) EE=Me (Mit16) 12,858 1,400
Other staff costs Hth 8 TAA
Salaries and allowance e KkoERL 9,269 1,092
Contribution to retirement benefit RN AIFHEI 5K
scheme 280 40
Equity-settled share-based NEmEE 2 IR T
payments expenses B2 28,757 -
Total staff costs BT 51,164 2,532

- st

Equity-settled share-based payment ARz #EE Z B S S
expenses (other than employees XH(TeEEERE

and directors) (included in F)(FFATTEZE)

administrative expenses) 27,166 -
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% - BiFE MR iEHTE

equipment 5,976 2,380

Changes in fair value of financial SHERFBIEEENINBE

assets classified as held-for- E2ATHEE
trading
— Realised loss from sale of listed - H&LEMRAKREZ
equity investments E#IRER 19,085 -
- Unrealised loss from changes - ITRAKRE R T ER
fair value of listed equity B AREHRERE
investments 71,661 -

90,746 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15. FEHixH
(a) Income tax recognised in profit or loss: (a) RERBEINHEH
2016 2015
—E-AF —T-nE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T#ET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH
Current tax BNERT 1A - -
Under provision in respect of BEFERETE
prior years 10,967 -
10,967 -
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had WEREBNESBETIREE  THRAE
been made as the Group had no assessable EERZEMEFTELEERTIAF]

profits for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—

15.

==
= —

=3

NETZA=Z+T—HILEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(a)

Income tax recognised in profit or loss:
(continued)

On 21 March 2016, Imagi Crystal Limited
(“Imagi Crystal”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, received a time barred tax
demand note dated 14 March 2016 of
approximately HK$9,863,000 issued by the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“HKIRD”) for the year of assessment 2009/2010.
On 23 February 2017, Imagi Crystal received a
tax demand note dated 21 February 2017 of
approximately HK$1,104,000 for the vyear
assessment 2010/11 issued by HKIRD. Since
Imagi Crystal is in a net current liabilities
position, Imagi Crystal did not purchase tax
reserve certificates before the due date and
HKIRD had applied a 5% surcharge of
approximately HK$493,000 and another 10%
additional surcharge of approximately
HK$1,036,000 to the outstanding amounts.
HKIRD considered that the impairment loss on
graphic imaging animation pictures, classified
as intangible assets, charged to profit or loss
for the respective year was not deductible and
the costs should have been treated as capital
expenditure for the year of assessment of
2009/10. Furthermore, HKIRD considered that
the impairment loss on an amount due from a
fellow subsidiary as a waiver to the fellow
subsidiary in the year of assessment 2010/2011
and should not be deductible as there were no
documentary evidences to justify the claim for
impairment loss. The directors of the Company
reassessed the tax position of Imagi Crystal
and recognized HK$10,967,000 as income tax
expense and HK$1,528,000 as administrative
expense in the current year.
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(a)

Income tax recognised in profit or loss:
(continued)

15.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

Fri8Hi<H (&)
(a) REZWROFAEHR: (&)

Reconciliation between tax expense and A HEAREARETEZE
accounting loss at applicable tax rate: FHEEYEE
2016 2015
—B-AF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before tax BRI ATES 1B (417,562) (81,238)
Tax at the domestic income tax IZZAHPTISH316.5%
rate of 16.5% FTE 2R (68,898) (13,404)
Tax effect of expenses not N H 2
deductible for tax purpose ks 54,360 12,883
Tax effect of income not taxable HERTIUWAZ
for tax purpose M E (9,550) 671)
Tax effect of deductible temporary R H) A R E iy =
differences not recognised MG 2 (288) -
Tax effect of tax losses not MR ERRIEE B2
recognised M E 24,376 1,214
Utilisation of tax losses BRANEARTERZ
previously not recognised MIEE R — (164)
Under provision in respect of BEFERBETR
prior years (10,967) -
Others HAth - 142
Tax expense for the year FRHIEZ H (10,967) -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$310,001,000 (2015: HK$347,174,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax assets has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

RmERKR AEEBBERDHM
% E51849310,001,0008 L (= F
— R4 347,174,000 7T ) 7]
FA LA 85 7R B8 F o B3 R 2R
FZROR TS BABA - B0 M W SRR T
MIBEE MK BEN TERE

+
I%IZI~°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(a)

Income tax recognised in profit or loss:
(continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting loss at applicate tax rates:
(continued)

The Group disposed of Infoport Management
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “TE Group”) during the year ended 31
December 2013. Pursuant to the relevant tax
laws in the PRC, the directors of the Company
evaluated the probability of whether or not that
a capital gain has arisen from the disposal of
TE Group. Taking into account the advice
obtained from tax advisor, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that its overall
investment loss position is justifiable and
accordingly, no capital gain tax needs to be
recognised in respect of the disposal of TE
Group.

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—AG+-A=-+—RILEE
16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 16. EERIFIETHAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
31 December 2016 —E-XR"E+=ZHA=+-—H

Contributions  Equity-settled
Salaries  to retirement  share-based

and other benefit payment

Fees benefits scheme expenses Total
BAER  ERGEZ

fie HERHEMEN AEMYN REXAHZH @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEn T FEn

Executive Directors: #172%:
Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip (Note 2, d) BBt a o) - 534 2 - 557
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Note &, d) EEBEE(Wit a d) - 400 - - 400
Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin (Note ) Kitchell Osman Bin’ &

(Wit a) - 1,200 12 3,022 4,34
Mr. Wong Yat Fai (Note 2) THELE(H a) - 834 15 - 849
Mr. Shimazaki Koji (Note a) BEERLEHE a) = 520 12 1,914 2,446
Ms. Choi Ka Wing (Note 2) BRARt(Hi a) z 360 12 3,022 3,304
Non-executive Director: FHEE
Mr. Leung Pak To (Note ¢) DAL (FTE e 36 - - ; 36

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHIEE:

Mr. Choi Chi Wah Vincent (Note g) AEREWH g) 993 - - R 993
Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny (Note g) BREEL (M g) 23 - - . 23
Mr. Miu Frank H. (Note ) BRAL(WE h) 219 - - - 219
Dr. Santos Antonio Maria (Note g) HEREBL(H# g) 223 - - - 993
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang (Note f REEEEW 1) 18 - - - 18
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Note f SRALE(H 1) 18 - - - 18
Dr. Lam Lee G. (Note ) WREELT (Wi 1) 18 - - - 18

978 3,848 74 7,958 12,858
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T-AF+-A=t+—HILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 16. ESRIFETBRAEME (@)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
31 December 2015 —E-AF+=-HA=+—H
Contributions  Equity-settled
Salaries o retirement  share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits scheme expense Total
RINER  DEREEZ
e FEREMEN GIF s ¢ SO it
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TETL TR TAL TAT
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Shan Jiuliang (Note b) BARKE (M) 200 - - - 200
Ms. Zhang Peng (Note b) RiewL(fitp) 200 - - - 200
Non-executive Directors: FHiTEE
Mr. Leung Pak To (Note ¢) 2k (Wite) 200 - - - 200
Mr. Wen Di (Note ¢) BELE(HHc) 200 - - - 200
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUAHTEE:
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang (Note ] RE &S (Wit 200 - - - 200
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Note f) BEAEE (W) 200 - - - 200
Dr. Lam Lee G (Note f) wReEL () 200 - - - 200
1,400 - - - 1,400
Notes: HisE -
(a) Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip, Mr. Wong Yat Fai, Mr. Chung (@) B TRBhAE  BEBE
Yuk Lun, Mr. Kitchell Osman Bin, Mr. Shimazaki Koji A - Kitchell Osman Bint 4 « IEIZ==
and Ms. Choi Ka Wing were appointed as executive AEAERBRELTHRIR - —X
directors on 28 January 2016, 28 January 2016, 1 #—A-+N\B -—FT—XRE—A=
May 2016, 10 May 2016, 10 May 2016 and 12 May +N\B - —E—XERFA—B -
2016 respectively. —XEFA+HE  —E—XRERAT
HR-_Z-—RERAT_BEZEAR
BITEE -
(b) Mr. Shan Jiuliang and Ms. Zhang Peng were removed (b) BHABRBEAREELZTHRR = —
as an executive director on 12 May 2016 and 15 April NERA+-—_BR-E—XAFEMA+
2016 respectively. ABWERRHNITEER -
(c) Mr. Wen Di was removed as a non-executive director (© BEEEN T E—XENA+RA R

on 15 April 2016.
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Mr. Chung Yuk Lun and Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip
resigned as an executive director on 15 June 2016
and 16 August 2016 respectively.

(e) Mr. Leung Pak To resigned as a non-executive director
on 23 February 2016 respectively.

) Mr. Chan Yuk Sang, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Dr. Lam
Lee G. resigned as independent non-executive
directors on 28 January 2016.

(9) Mr. Choi Chi Wah Vincent, Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny
and Dr. Santos Antonio Maria were appointed as
independent non-executive directors on 28 January
2016.

(h) Mr. Miu Frank H. was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 2 February 2016.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group and the emoluments for non-executive
directors, and independent non-executive directors
shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company. The Company do not have
chief executive.

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments
for both reporting years and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
nor as compensation for loss of office during the
years.

16.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

EERFIRITHRAESME (@
Wiz (4

d EEBELERRREBEESIN-F
—RERATHEERZZ-RENA
TARABERITES -

(e) RABMEER_TE—FRF_A=-+=
BEIIERITES -

() BREASE - BHEMLERMRERD
ITR-ZF-RF-A=-+/\BEEE
TIFHMITESE -

(9 BEELE - BRUKIE T RMLEEE
TR _E—RF—AZ+N\BHEZT
BRNIERITES -

(h) BHEEEN_ZT-R"F-_A-HEZ
ERBIIFNITES -

EXFATRHTESECHME T EZRERS
FEIRARR R R AR B 2 EAE IR AR
BB E - MIFRTERTRBULIFATE
EHFMEIEBREREERETRER
BT - NARLEITRAER

RMEREFEAN  ARAEEHEN
ZEMMNE -RNEMEFER  NEBEL
BAARNREEIMNETAMEARSIE
MAREBESIERIMARER 2 BEH K
ER N ERRRAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEZZT—RFT+A=1T—HILFE

17. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
four (2015: two) were employees who are not directors
of the Company and the remainder are directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 16 above. The emoluments of
these four (2015: two) highest paid employees were
as follows:

17.

BEME
rEBESSHFHzOBEALH HE(Z
T-RF: MB)/ARBESTUINZ
BE HRTRARFER HMENEX
MIEE16AHKREE - bit02(—F— 04 :
ME)EaTMEE 2MEmT

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—FE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T#ET
Salaries and other benefits e hHEMER 2,309 882
Equity-settled share-based payment ARz 4EE 2 B S Y
expenses g 19,107 -
Contributions to retirement benefit R IRA&HFHEI 5K
scheme 65 30
21,481 912
Their emoluments were within the following bands: FiALTZENE N FIATEE
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEAH EEAH
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z A 7L%E1,000,000% 7T - 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 LE
4,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7LE
5,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,00178 2
6,500,000/ 7T 2 -
4 2
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCI

18. LOSS PER SHARE 18.
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of $424,549,000 (2015: $81,238,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 449,518,000 shares (2015: 277,703,000
shares(restated)) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share
The calculation of diluted loss per share is
based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of $424,549,000 (2015: $81,238,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted)

CONSOLIDATED
AL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

BREE

(a) BREXEE
EREARNBEBIDEREKRR#
A A JE 1k £ 18424,549,000/% 7T

—Z—F4 : 81,238,000/ 7T )

MFEREBITEBRMETHE
449,518,0000%( = & — A F :
277,703,0000% (#£E75|) )51 & -

(b) HBREEESSE
EREBEEBIOIERARREES
A JEAE E518424,549,0008 7T ( —
T — F 4 : 81,238,000/ 7T ) &
BT AT E I @R NEF
HEGTE -

BERNEFLGH (8F)

2016 2015
o L —T-5%
Shares ’000 Shares '000
T Fhg
(restated)
(&31)
Weighted average number of AR EERERE
ordinary shares used in the B2 & BRI
calculation of basic loss per HE
share 449,518 277,703
Effect of deemed issue of shares RIFATHEREAR
under the Company's share NRBIRRERT 83
option scheme for nil TR 2 o2
consideration 258 -
Weighted average number of ARt EEREER
ordinary shares used in the Az & @A N HE T
calculation of diluted earnings B
per share 449,776 277,703

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share has
been adjusted for the share consolidation (“Share
Consideration 1”) on 31 May 2016 and Share
consideration (“Share Consideration [I”) on 13 March
2017 and the effect of an open offer on 26 August
2016. Details of the share consolidation and open
offer are set out in notes 30 and 39(iii).

ARAEEREARBEBE LB
BINEFEHEERRZE—"FHA
=t+t—HAzZBRHhEHTBRMDEHF—])
FZE—+tF=ZA+Z=ZBZ2ERHEH
(B EHZDAERRZZT—"F/\A
ZHRNEZARBEE R EELRARE-
Bra kR AREE ZFIBEHNMHFEI0
% 39ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ BERRE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Motor fixtures and
buildings improvements vehicle Yacht equipment Total
B RE
HELHRET HENERE AE i} kit @it

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TETL TET T TET TETL FET

CosT B

At 1 January 2015 RZF-R§-A-A 100,627 - - - 719 101,346
Additions e - 525 - - 305 830
Written off s - - - - ) (6)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+2A

=1-H 100,627 525 - - 1,018 102,170
Additions e - 2 2,184 45,000 705 47,891
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 36) (i EMEAR(H:i36) (100,627) - - - (1) (100,628)
Disposals it - - - - (712) (712)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R

+-B=t-8 - 527 2,184 45,000 1,010 48721

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT frE R ¥ E

At 1 January 2015 RZE-HE-F-A 1,088 - - - 639 1,727
Charge for the year Enik 2,176 111 - - 9% 2,380
Eliminated on disposals (HER B - - - - ) 6)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RETZA
=1-H 3,264 111 - - 726 4,101
Charge for the year LS 1632 176 255 3,750 163 5976
Impairment loss recognised in the  FREDHHESE
year (note) (F31) - - - 10,470 - 10,470
Eliminated on disposals of UG 5
subsidiaries (note 36) (Fi3£36) (4,896) - - - - (4,896)
Eliminated on disposals it R - - - - (704) (704)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE
+-A=t-A - 287 255 14,220 185 14947
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2016 RoE-7E+ZA
=t - 240 1,929 30,780 825 33,774
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F+-F
=+-H 97,363 414 - - 29 98,069
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The leasehold land and buildings comprise commercial
office units and car-parking spaces located in Hong
Kong.

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the term

buildings of the lease, or 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term
improvements of the lease, or 5 years
Motor vehicles 20%
Yacht 10%
Furniture, fixtures 5% - 20%

and equipment

Note:

On 21 February 2017, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Vendor”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”)
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to
sell and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase
the yacht at a cash consideration of US$4,200,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$32,760,000). As the selling price is lower
than the carrying amount of the yacht as at 31 December
2016, the directors of the Company assessed the recoverable
amount of the yacht as at 31 December 2016 and as a result
the carrying amount of the yacht was written down to its
recoverable amount of HK$30,780,000. An impairment loss
of HK$10,470,000 was recognised as expense for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The estimate of the recoverable
amount was based on the fair value less costs of disposal
using market approach by reference to the subsequent selling
price of the yacht less costs of disposal.

19.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

ME BENRE &)
HE i RIEFBECRES 2 AN
N R HEAL o

A EME BB NRBEAEB IDAERE
BATFRITE

METHEREF IREEHEEFHK
A+FHMEZ
gEE

HEMEEE ZEBHEEF K
REHRE K
RE

E 20%

e 10%

B RKER 5% - 20%

Bl

Kt -

RZE—+EF_A=+—H AQF—MH
PEMBARERE—BBIE=FH
(TEFDIIL—mEEHZ Bt - BAFE
ERGERELEMESCERKGEREEE
Pt 384 R (8 54,200,000F T(HE R
32,760,000 7T ) MR EEBER T —RF
TZAZt+—HEEMNERAE ARRES
EEERER T —AF+tA=1+—B8&
AUk E R W ERAAESRZE TR E S
%830,780,0008 L HE T — NF+ = A
=+—BLFE HEEE10,470,0007% T
BRAEAZ HAIMESENGTERER
FEALERN 2L EHEEECSERLE
AR IS ARTE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. EBFEE
CGl
animation
pictures
E
EREBE
HK$’000
FETT
(Note)
(Htaz)
cosT R
At 1 January 2015, 31 December MR-ZT—HF—H—H"
2015 and 31 December 2016 —E-RFTZA=T-RAKRZET—RF
+=-A=+—8© 287,405
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT # 8% (&
At 1 January 2015, 31 December R _-ZT—HF—H—H"
2015 and 31 December 2016 —E-RFFA=+—HEZE—RHF
+—-A=+—H 287,405
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December R-_ZT—AF—H—H"
2015 and 31 December 2016 —E-RAFT A=+ —RRZZE-RF
+=-A=+—H _
Note: et -
CGl animation pictures were internally generated and stated BEREGRHERANSEERKZES RIEEE
at production costs incurred to date, including borrowing FEZEHER ARSI BRETERZEEK
costs capitalised, less accumulated amortisation and AR RETREE B (WA ) -

impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YR E R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. AHHERE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHPERERE
2016 2015
—E-XNE —E-A1F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Listed investments: IhRE:

Corporate bonds listed in Hong Kong with ~ I&/E LMz ARES - EEM

fixed interest rates ranging from 3.3% to ENF3.3%54.8% * 5IHA

4.8% and maturity dates between NF_E-RET+ATN\BZE

18 October 2016 and 21 November 2018 ~ —F—/\fF+—A=+—H - 51,792
Corporate bonds listed in Singapore with ~ RH I EHz ARES - EEH

fixed interest rates ranging from 8.5% to ENTF85%FE11.1% » HIH A

11.1% and maturity dates between NF_E—+F=A-1+HZE
20 March 2017 and 10 January 2019 —E-NE-ATE - 16,039
Corporate bonds listed in the European RGNS LT ARIES - F
market with interest rates ranging from ENF5.1%%6.8% ' FIHAN
5.1% to 6.8% and maturity dates between F-ZT—/\F-A-t+—HZE
21 January 2018 and 23 January 2019 —E-NF-A=+=H - 24,482
- 92,313
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FEmRARES  BARAE 127,923 -
Less: Impairment loss wOREEE (79,273) -
48,650 -
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RIERE 2 AT -
Current assets /ﬁ§b§E \ 48,650 15,749
Non-current assets ERBEE - 76,564
48,650 92,313
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_T—
21.

NEtZA=t+—HILFE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

On 2 March 2016, the Group subscribed (i) 6,200,000
shares of Joint Global Limited (“Joint Global”) and
(i) 450,000 shares of FreeOpt Holdings Limited
(“FreeOpt”) at considerations of HK$45,198,000 and
HK$45,000,000, respectively. On 3 March 2016, the
Group subscribed 7,500,000 shares of Freewill
Holdings Limited (“Freewill”) at a consideration of
HK$37,725,000. These three companies are
incorporated in the Republic of the Marshall Islands.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group held 2%, 12%
and 1% equity interest in Joint Global, FreeOpt and
Freewill, respectively. The investees are principally
engaged in investment holding and the provision of
financial services in Hong Kong. These investments
are measured at cost less impairment at the end of
the reporting period because the ranges of reasonable
fair value estimates are so significant that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

Subsequent to the investments made in these three
companies, the Group found that all of these three
companies have experienced losses mainly attributable
to losses incurred on their respective investment
activities. On 20 January 2017, the Group entered in
sale and purchase agreements with independent third
parties to dispose of the subsidiaries of the Company
holding the shares of Joint Global and FreeOpt and
Freewill and Convertible Note Il (see note 25) at total
consideration of HK$51,000,000 (the “Disposals”). In
this regard, impairment losses of HK$79,273,000, with
reference to the sale proceeds of the Disposals, was
recognized and charged to profit or loss in the current
year. The Disposals were completed on 23 February
2017.

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

21.

AHEERE ©)

73_/3:7*/\4—15 H_EjX%
R HE(1)6,200,000/% Joint Global
Limited ( [Joint Globall ) &%
K (ii)450,000% FreeOpt Holdings
Limited ( [FreeOpt] ) & - R{E
5l &45,198,000/% 7T 245,000,000
BT RZE-—XR"F=ZH=H - &%
E 2 #57,500,000%Freewill Holdings
Limited ( [Freewill] ) &5 R{EEA
37,725,000/ 7T - Z=K R AHREA
BB EAMBIGEMAKI - RZE—RF
+ZRA=+—H ' X&EE% RI#E A Joint
Global * FreeOpt M Freewill?2% ~ 12%
R1%iE - WIRERR T ERERE
TREEEARE SRR o NREH
N ZERERKANBRERERTZ R
EEATESEGNHEERK KA
RIEERAHEANTEREEAISERE -

RIEEZ =K AaE  NEEZER - fT
Bz =—RpoaIREEE  T2RARL
FENRETHELAEE KT —+
F—RAZ+H AEBEBIFE=FF]
Y EE W - LWHEFAJoint Global
FreeOpt X Freewil [i% 5 & o] # i¥ 2= 4%
= (RMF25) 2AXRAFRIMBAF -
# 18 5A51,000,00087T ( [HES
B/ ) gt 2EHEFEMREXK
A R EE1879,273,000/8 TR MR
REFBEEFNR - HEFHER -
—+E-A=+=A%MK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 22, A—EEELEoES

2016 2015

—E—XRE —ZE—hF

HK$°000 HK$’000

HET FAET

Cost of interest in a joint venture ~ PNA & B m PR 150,000 -
Share of post-acquisition loss and 715K EEEETE X Bt

other comprehensive expense E2HEAX (7,311) -

142,689 -

On 26 February 2016, the Company entered into a RZE-—RFZAZ+XB RARRH

joint venture agreement with Bob May Incorporated
(“BMI”), pursuant to which the Company and BMI
agreed to set-up a joint venture company, Imagination
Holding Limited (“Imagination Holding”), for the
purpose of carrying out the business of provision of
finance and money lending by contributing
HK$150,000,000 each to the initial share capital of
the joint venture company. As at 31 December 2016,
both the Company and BMI held 50% equity interest
in Imagination Holding, which has two wholly-owned
subsidiaries namely Jocasta Ventures Ltd and Simagi

Bob May Incorporated([BMI)) 5] 32 & &
W B AARIEBMIREE RSB
A& & 1 & 2 )46 B 78 )% £150,000,000
78 JLBX 3 A & /A Alimagination Holding
Limited([ Imagination Holding|)+ LA%E &1
HEELRRMEEB R_T—RF+_A
=+—H ' A2 FEBMIE$EBImagination
Holding#50%/% # - Imagination Holding
EMfE2E N B FlJocasta Ventures Ltd
JeSimagi Finance Company Limited ©

Finance Company Limited.

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture as RZE-—RE+ZA=+—80 FK%E
at 31 December 2016 is as follows: RZaEhE I ERFIFET

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group

Proportion of
voting rights held
by the Group

Name of Country of Principal place 31 December 31 December
joint venture incorporation of business 2016 2016  Principal activity
RZB-RE RZE-AE
tZBZt-B  f2Azt-R
A5EREL REEHEL
RELEER RIS IBEEHY FrEgRsELhl SEHH TEER
Imagination Holding Limited Republic of the Marshall Hong Kong 50% 50%  Investment holding
Islands g4 RERR
SARHEANE
Jocasta Ventures Ltd British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 50% 50%  Intermediate holding
ZERAHE &3 RiMER
Simagi Finance Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 50% 50% Provision of finance and
B B3 money lending business
REBERHEER

2016 3l BEEBZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

22.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 22,

(continued)

Imagination Holding, the joint venture in which the
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity

R—REEEbEIER »

K& EL2HAME—E &1 ¥Imagination
HoldingZs— M3 L AR EEE - W EM

whose quoted market price is not available. HRE o
Summarised financial information of the joint RELECHBERBE
venture
Summarised financial information in respect of the REEBZAEESMEZWBEERBEESH7
Group’s joint venture is set out below. PONNE
2016
—E-RF
HK$’000
FET
Current assets uﬁbﬁﬁ 285,448
Current liabilities mEBRE (71)
285,377
Included in the above assets and FFALMEERBE
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents RekReHEIER 13,255
Current financial liabilities (excluding B KEEE(TEEE S KA M RN KA
trade and other payments and NHEE)
provisions) (71)
2016
—E-RF
HK$°000
FET
Revenue WA 17,935
Loss and total comprehensive expense FNEE & 2 #5
for the year (14,623)
Dividends received from the joint FAEEERERRMZKRE
venture during the year -
Included in the above loss: T A LEE
Interest income FEWA 17,935
Impairment loss on loan receivables B’%”ﬁl%?ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ)@ﬂﬁ
and interest receivable (note) (KaE) (32,010)

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 22, N—REEELEIER @
(continued)

Summarised financial information of the joint EELECHBEEREE (&)

venture (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial FHBERBE RN E M BRRA
information to the carrying amount of the interest in R ZREErEEGZEEREZY
the joint venture recognised in the consolidated Bk -

financial statements:

2016

A

HK$’000

T

Net assets of the joint venture BEPEZEETE 285,377
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ ANEERE =R Z A EEZRLLD

interest in the joint venture 50%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest NEEN G &bk 2w 2 REE
in the joint venture 142,689

2016 i EHEEZERER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—

22.

Annual Report 2016

T F+-A=t+—AILFE
INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(continued)
Summarised financial information of the joint

venture (continued)
Note:

On 16 March 2016, Simagi Finance Company Limited
(“Simagi”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the joint venture
company, entered into a deed of assignment with an
independent third party (the “Assignor”), whereby a loan
receivable of the Assignor of HK$30,000,000 (the “Loan
Receivable”) and interest accrued thereon of HK$1,197,000
were assigned to Simagi at a consideration of HK$27,000,000.
The borrower, Up Energy Trading Limited (“UETL”), is a
subsidiary of Up Energy Development Group Limited (“Up
Energy”), an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with its shares listed on Stock Exchange. The Loan Receivable
and the accrued interest receivable are guaranteed by Up
Energy and are repayable by 20 consecutive monthly
instalments of HK$1,500,000 each commencing from 17
December 2015. Simagi did not receive any settlements from
the borrower and Up Energy received a winding up petition
in May 2016 filed by Credit Suisse AG, Singapore Branch
against Up Energy in the Supreme Court of Bermuda for the
outstanding balance of the matured convertible notes in the
principal amount of HK$150,000,000. Up Energy is currently
undergoing restructuring. Based on the available information,
including the unaudited financial information up to 31 March
2016 and the proposed restructuring plan of Up Energy, the
management of the joint venture company considered that
the recoverability of the Loan Receivable and the accrued
interest receivable is uncertain and an impairment loss of
HK$32,010,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2016.

IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

22,

ERETHBENEE ()
e

EA 7 /\E ﬂ-f—/\El AA*@%ZEQ
Bf/& A &Simagi Finance Company Limited
(TSmagd)Eﬁi BB E=ZF([EEADE

— M EEEEEE - 5 It - #3% A 230,000,000
E%ﬁfuﬁzéﬁ,&((fuﬂzfmj)&EIJEQHF‘J
1,197,000/% 7T T3 =X {27,000, ooo,amﬁy“
FSimagi ° fg FBIKAERE S BR A R([E
REERE S ) REREREREEBR AT
([MBREERD 2B AR BRERARE
FETMA L 2 BB R T HARD AL
BT LT o R E R % FE IR FE 5T 7 B B B R Ak
BER AE-_Z—RAF+=-A+tHHER
LA 2018 A 7 8i&)X1,500,000/8 LB £ -
Simagill £ Y 2| {8 77 (£ {7 {8 1 3018 R A2 R
BERRZZE—A"FRAKE—HERER"
7% 2 55 iCredit Suisse AG(¥TINE 5 17) &t
¥ {2 K 88 JR 5L 7N & %5150,000,0007% 7T E HA
AR ERE 2 RS ERm B R ERR ARIE
o BIRAERIRAF IE 1T EHE - BRI B ER
(BREEZ—R"FZA=Z+—HZFXE
EZMBER) REIREIR 2 EZREATE
EETHEEEERRERER &FEHAU*#?HJ
BB FEE EEN WREES
—/‘—\i-t—:ﬂE—i——EIJtEF‘QﬁEWWEJEﬂE
32,010,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED 23.
SUBSIDIARY/IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON

RARGFEARHMBELRZIRE R
REEEARMB AR 2 RENRE

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED il
SUBSIDIARY
2016 2015
B AR —T-uE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Investment in an unconsolidated RAREREAEHB AR Z
subsidiary ®E - 88,828
Less: Impairment on investment B IRERE - (64,985)
- 23,843

2016 Fi# EFEBEERBRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

23.

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARY/IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON
INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

On 26 February 2015, the Group, through one of its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, established /& F92% &A1=
PR 75 B PR A 7] (“Xiamen Sunflower”) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) for providing advisory
services in relation to business information, enterprise
management, investment and social economics
(excluding financial business), as well as supply chain
management, with Mr. Shan Jiuliang (“Mr. Shan”)
being appointed as the legal representative and sole
director of Xiamen Sunflower. On 26 June 2015,
RMB71,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$88,828,000) was deposited to a bank account of
Xiamen Sunflower as paid up capital. As disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 17 December
2015, Xiamen Sunflower entered into an unauthorised
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) in August
2015 to lease a property for a term of two years from
a company (“Sub-lessor”) in which Mr. Shan and his
spouse, Ms. Zhang Peng (“Ms. Zhang”), the two
former executive directors of the Company, collectively
own 86.83% equity interest, for a rent of RMB2,688,000
per annum. A total sum of RMB6,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$7,468,000), representing two
years’ rent paid in advance and a deposit of
RMB624,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$777,000), under the Tenancy Agreement was paid
to the Sub-lessor. The board of directors of the
Company other than Ms. Zhang and Mr. Wen Di has
subsequently resolved to revoke the transaction but
the Company was advised by its PRC legal adviser
that although (i) the board of directors of the Company
other than Mr. Shan, Ms. Zhang and Mr. Wen Di (the
“Board”) was not aware of the Tenancy Agreement
at the time when it was executed; and (ii) the Board
had not approved, authorised or ratified the
transaction, this does not invalidate the Tenancy
Agreement. The Group is not able to get in contact
with Mr. Shan since November 2015. In addition, the
Group has not been able to gain access to the books
and records, including banks statements, of Xiamen
Sunflower since then, or access to the funds in
Xiamen Sunflower’s bank accounts.

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

23.

RAGEANRHBARZKRE, T
REBANERKMB AR 2 REWRE
B8 @)

R-E—FF-_A -+ KEBHFE
B—HEE2ENBAREREAREM
B ([ 7 B 1) A Sz B P Bk 1@ AR 128 7 75 AR
BERAR(EFERE]) LRt EHE
BMELN CEEE RERLESEE
(TRECRER)NE ARSI R E
BER BAREAE(ELE]ERET
AREFIBRBHNEERXRRZE—EFZ R
—E-RFEANAZt+NB EMBEN
B178R P & 77 A A R #71,000,0007T
(#8 & 1 #788,828,000/8 7t ) fE & & &
BRAR - MARRBHAST—HF+=
A+tBRZAEMERE BEFRER=
E-RAFNAFN—HOAEEENTEE
([ AERE] Ua—Mar( o
BAINEKRRMBRIAITESELE
REBEBEBLZE((RLT)HREFE
HEF86.83% R E)HEY X REIM
F - MHe RS F ARK2688,0005T
RERERZ ERIBAIMEHEA
R #6,000,0007T ( 1 & 7 #97,468,000
Brr) BN ZMERES RIZEARK
624,000 T (FHE R #777,000%8 7T ) ° X
NRABEEC(RRERBELERINE
BRBHHERS BARREEFREE
EEBEN BELARARESS(FE
ERTERBEEERINTESE))
RETHEBBRL TG R(i)ES
SWRME BEXERRS 51T
FHERZRER - AEEE - —AF
T ARERBEE LS I AEE
18 —E R e EEE PR fR 2 BRI I &2
B(BERITES) TEZHAEMR
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARY/IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON
INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

On 7 March 2016, the Company entered into a
disposal agreement (“Disposal Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to dispose
of Imagi Jue Ming Limited (which holds the entire
equity interest in Po Hau Holdings Limited and Xiamen
Sunflower), together with the shareholder’s loan
amounting to HK$100,000,000, at a cash consideration
of HK$25,000,000 (the “Consideration”). The
transaction was completed on 9 March 2016 (the
“date of disposal”) and the Purchaser confirmed that
the conditions for Disposal Agreement were satisfied
on the date of disposal.

Taking into account the facts and circumstances, the
Group accounted the investment in Xiamen sunflower
at cost less impairment as at 31 December 2015 and
recognised an impairment loss of approximately
HK$64,985,000 on the carrying amount of its
investment in Xiamen Sunflower during the year ended
31 December 2015 based on the Consideration less
the amount attributable to the net assets (comprised
only bank balances) of Imagi Jue Ming Limited and
Po Hau Holdings Limited. When preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group did not consolidate
the results of Xiamen Sunflower for the period from
1 January 2016 to 9 March 2016. This non-
consolidation of Xiamen Sunflower for the period from
1 January 2016 to 9 March 2016 is not in compliance
with the requirements of HKFRS 10, which provides
that consolidation of a subsidiary should begin when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
As such, the Board is unable to ascertain the impact
of not consolidating the financial statements of Xiamen
Sunflower on the consolidated financial statements.

23.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_F-AF+-A=t—ALFE
RARGZEANRHBARZRE R
REEARMEAR ZRENRE
BB )

R-_TE—ARNF=ZA+tH AQAFH—F
BUE=FTEARDTLEE R L
Sk ]) LR IR S K {E25,000,0007%
T(REDEEEFSABEBFRAB(E
BREEEERERAGAIREMERZ
2 EF A% #E ) 3 [F100,000,000/% 7T 2 %
RER-ZRXHSR_T—XEF=AhH
(HEBBDTEX EFER LEWH
EMEHEREE BEER -

KERBEBREERBRL RZT—HF
+TZA=+—HB AEEBREMKE
MR ERK AR EREAR ERRE
WERMMEBRAPAERA A REEZER
ERATMNEEFE(EBRFERITER)
MeE #B#E2—_FT—RAF+-_A=+—
HEFEASEHRREMBEHNRE
2 B T B ¥ 3R R B &5 18 £964,985,000
BT -ERHEHE_ZT—XRF+_-A
=t BLFENGRAEUBRRE &
EEMURBEMIRER-_Z—F—A
—HE_Z-X"FZANBHMEMNES
HREAR - A =—FE—R"F—H—AB=
—E-ANEZANBHEBEMBEL
AARTHAD B BREERFE105
HIFRIE  RZAGHRE - A& B FE AT BUS 5
ERRIBEHBRRGAE AR WEAR
& 338 Sk 22 MY B A B A0 Il HE B 12 LE 4R
BAR Bt EFEEERTHER
BB B HREREES ARSLRA MR
Eg 0} 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

24. CLUB DEBENTURE 24, SEEH

The club debenture with indefinite useful life is tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no impairment
loss was identified with reference to market value.

HEERAEAFHZEREFEFR
RHERBERREETRHENR 2%
Mg AR A EER AL EE R AR
BREE-

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLES 25. FEWATRRERE
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET

Convertible note receivables -
designated at FVTPL

JEM I R IR E BB
BERAFEIR

Convertible Note | AR R — 41,299 -
Convertible Note I CIE) =t 2,167 -
43,466 -

Convertible note receivables acquired are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss because the
relevant financial assets constitute a group that is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management and investment strategy, and information
about the Group is provided internally on that basis
to the Group’s key management personnel.

Convertible Note | represented the fair value of an
investment in convertible note issued by China Agri-
Products Exchange Limited (“China Agri-Products”),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. The principal
amount of the convertible note is HK$23,200,000,
which can be converted into 58,000,000 ordinary
shares of China Agri-Products at a conversion price
of HK$0.4 per share from the inception date until the
date which is five business days preceding the
maturity date on 18 October 2021. The convertible
note receivable carried interest at 7.5% per annum,
payable semi-annually on 19 October and 19 April of
each calendar year. The convertible note could be
redeemed by China Agri-Products any date on or
before maturity date at its principal amount.
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLES (continued)
There is a day-one gain of approximately
HK$29,836,000 for Convertible Note |, which is
deferred and amortised in the consolidation statement
of profit or loss on a straight-line basis within the
effective lives of the convertible note receivable.

Convertible Note Il represented the fair value of 2.14%
interest in convertible notes issued by Up Energy, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. The principal
amount of the convertible notes is HK$100,000,000
and HK$130,000,000, which can be converted into
134,138,162 and 174,379,611 ordinary shares of Up
Energy at a conversion price of HK$0.7455 per share
from the inception date until the date which is five
business days preceding the maturity date on 31
December 2018. The convertible notes carried interest
at 5% per annum, payable semi-annually on 30 June
and 31 December of each calendar year. The
convertible notes would be redeemed by Up Energy
on maturity date at their principal amount. Subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, the Group disposed
of the convertible notes to an independent third party
through the disposal of a subsidiary (note 21).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fair value
gain of the convertible note receivables amounting to
HK$16,922,000 plus the amortization of day-one gain
for Convertible Note | of HK$1,177,000 for the period
is recognised in “other gains or losses’ (2015: nil).

25.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T—A~Ft-A=+—RAILEE
EWMRRRE @)
A#REREE -—FES - RKED

29,836,000/ 7T % £ B IR IE - WHR
e AT i SRR 0 A IR MR B AVE
iR ERR -

AR AR SR IR — 1 NMB R B8R (B 22 PR
FHERR)BEITHN E2.14% Al AR
EENATE -AIRREBENASER
100,000,000/ 7T }130,000,000/% 7T -
FERBEHEEISHA T \F
+ZA=+—HRRAEEXA A58
M S AR0.74558 TR B A B E K
134,138,162/% &2 174,379,611 X2k 8
REBER - T RRBBRIREFS%TE
HAREBEFEA=TARTZA=1—
HEFFXe ARRERA] B EIKsE
BRI REASHEER - RWE IR

% AEECEBLE-—HNBRARAS
ABRERBELET —RBILE =77 (K

it21)e

Bz XR"F+=ZA=+—8A1L
FE BRALKREENRFEKZ
16,922,000 LIl E A MR FRIE—HF
— R UK % R 5% HA RS A0 81,177 ooo;‘%
TR EM Sk EE I BR(ZE—
F )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 26. HttEWRIE - RERFANIE

PREPAYMENTS

2016 2015

—E-AF —

HK$’000 HK$°000

F#ET FET

Other receivables H b pE IR 18,442 _

Deposits and prepayments mE RBENFR 4,729 3,875

23,171 3,875

The amounts are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expenses within one year.

27. PURPORTED SHORT-TERM LOAN/
IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON A PURPORTED
SHORT-TERM LOAN

27.

% FFRTAIRN — F AW Ol iR R
Fo

FrBEMER FBERERZR
EEE

2016 2015

—E-XRF —T—hHF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET T#ET

Purported short-term loan Fraga HiE - 10,000
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt & @ REREME = (10,000)
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PURPORTED SHORT-TERM LOAN/
IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON A PURPORTED
SHORT-TERM LOAN (continued)

On the instruction of Mr. Shan, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company transferred HK$10,000,000
to a purported third party (“Fund Recipient”) for a
purported term of six months (the “Purported Loan”)
on 6 August 2015. Other than Mr. Shan, the Board
does not have knowledge on the details of the
Purported Loan and the background of the Fund
Recipient.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
23 February 2016, the Board is of the view that there
is an element of suspected fraud in the whole
transaction after a preliminary investigation conducted
by the management of the Company. The Group
commenced legal proceedings by issuing a writ of
summons in the High Court of Hong Kong on 23
February 2016 against the Fund Recipient for the
recovery of the Purported Loan together with interest
thereon and costs.

Despite the aforesaid legal proceedings, in the opinion
of the Board, the recoverability of the Purported Loan
is uncertain at this stage and accordingly, a full
allowance of HK$10,000,000 has been provided for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

On 9 March 2016, the Company disposed of Imagi
Jue Ming Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary which
indirectly hold the purported short-term loan, and the
purported short-term loan was derecognised through
the disposal of subsidiary.

27.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
@T /2\7/\£E+ A= JT Eﬁiﬁ

FriBEER FrBERER 2R
EER (/%af
BERLZER ADT—M2ANHA

AREIRZZE—RFN\NANBM—HFME
F=H(E2EEE])#HHER10,000,000
BT EEAENEA(BERD K
BREEN EESUWTNEMBERZ
HERECEBSEZES-

QD$’_\ﬂE|Hﬂ7%7§—/\_\$:H:+E

ZREMBER BAAREREET
%ﬂiﬁﬁf@é%@?&%%lx%#ﬁ
ERUSFORZ - AEEFAR T
—NFZRAZT=REFESEERE
HEMSK MESBFEREEEF
o AR B PR B RCE R H A 8 RS -

EEH LEEFR BEEER
ﬁ Ik B P B B RKAY AT U B S T
E-AL EREBEEZT—AF+=A
=+—H8 ¥ /E5#210,000,000/8 T2
EERME -

RZFB-RF=ZANLA XRRHE—

F'ﬁ’iiéﬁﬁ%“ﬂf%iﬁ'&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ’“_ &
TF‘?Tzz%Eﬁﬁua SEE T MATBE

HEFEBHENBR Tﬁﬁ%\%tﬁﬁm\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

28. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 28. BHEFEERE

Held-for-trading investments represent the listed
equity securities in Hong Kong of HK$586,453,000
(2015: nil) and rights issue for a listed equity security
in Hong Kong of HK$2,185,000 (2015: nil). All listed
equity securities in Hong Kong are pledged to a
financial institution to secure margin financing facilities
obtained. Details of the Group’s top ten investments
are as follows:

Closing price  Market value

No. of shares as at as at

held as at 31 December 31 December

Stock 31 December 2016 2016

Note code  Stock name 2016 (HK$) HK$'000

RIB-RE  RoE-AE
R-g8-x& t-B=t-B +zp=t-m
+-B=+-H MUTE  mEsEE

HEBEBRENESALTRAES
586,453,000/ T(— T —HF : #) N
AR B 1T 2 E AR AR %:2,185,0007%8
T(ZE—RF:\) -MBEEELTR
REHEER TS REE  LUERIE
MRESBMEER - AEE+RIREF
BEINWT :

Approximate %  No. of issued

Approximate%  share holding share of
to held-for- in investee investee
Realised ~ Unrealised trading as at as at as at

gain/(loss) gain/(loss) 31 December 31 December 31 December
HK$'000 HK$'000 2016 2016 2016
ERZE-AE  RIE-AE RCE-AE

BEEKE/  APBUE/ tZBAZt-B toB=t-B TZAET-R
(E8) () BAEEEHE AHRELFN  RRELIN

Wit RORE REEE HRENRGHA (%7) Thn TEn THET  BNESML BOREFESM CRORAEA

1y 219 Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited 195,400,000 05 97,700 (8,502) 14,102 16.60% 1.36% 14,324,137,300
REERNEERERAR

2 13 HengTen Networks Group Limited 211,364,000 0.39 82,432 (8,840) (23,585) 14.00% 0.28% 74,599,533,447
ERAEEEERAR

8 708 Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited 44,000,000 147 64,680 - 17,280 10.99% 0.51%  8,640,000,000
BAEREZEEERAR

@ 613 Yugang International Limited 426,634,000 0.148 63,142 (196) 9,772 10.73% 458% 9,305,276,756
AEERERAR

(5 1332 China Touyun Tech Group Limited 100,000,000 0.32 32,000 8,000 (5,500) 5.44% 1.02%  9,797,311,301
HEEEHEEEERAR

6 2% China Strategic Holdings Limited 179,180,000 0177 31,715 - (6,104) 5.39% 1.05% 16,987,713,835
HREBARAA

mn 62 Enerchina Holdings Limited 97,111,000 0.31 30,104 9,986 (4,914) 511% 1.35%  7,193,846,664
FEERRERLT

(8 2066  Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. - H Shares 3,682,500 79 29,092 - (3,922) 4.94% 0.24%  1,540,742,500
BREIRHERLA - HR

9 689 EPI (Holdings) Limited 145,785,000 0.187 21,262 - (3,490) 4.63% 3.34%  4,367,121,822
REEE(BR)ERAA

(10) 720 Auto Italia Holdings Limited 200,000,000 0.12 24,000 (8,600) (11,400) 4.08% 383% 5.219,541,190
BENARERLR
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

(continued)

Notes:

M

Freeman FinTech Corporation Ltd is principally
engaged in the provision of securities & futures
brokerage services; provision of insurance brokerage
and financial planning services; provision of corporate
finance advisory services; trading of securities;
provision of finance; & investment holding. According
to its latest published financial statements, it had net
asset value of approximately HK$3,311,461,000 as at
30 September 2016.

HengTen Networks Group Ltd is principally engaged
in investment and trading of securities, provision of
finance, property investment and manufacturing and
sales of accessories for photographic products.
According to its latest published financial statements,
it had net asset value of approximately HK$933,287,000
as at 31 December 2016.

Evergrande Health Industry Group Ltd is principally
engaged in book and magazine publishing, digital
business, copyright holding and licensing business in
HK and providing plastic surgery, anti-aging and other
health services to customers in the PRC. According
to its latest published financial statements , it had
net asset value of approximately HK$ 633,700,000 as
at 31 December 2016.

Yugang International Ltd is principally engaged in
treasury management; property investment; and
trading of scrap metals and other materials. According
to its latest published financial statements, it had net
asset value of approximately HK$2,791,417,000 as at
31 December 2016.

China Touyun Tech Group Ltd is principally engaged
in design, development, manufacture and sale of
packaging products and point-of-sales display units.
According to its latest published financial statements,
it had net asset value of approximately HK$1,193,412,000
as at 31 December 2016.

China Strategic Holdings Ltd is principally engaged
in investment in securities, trading of metal minerals
and electronic components, money lending. According
to its latest published financial statements, it had net
asset value of approximately HK$2,921,227,000 as at
31 December 2016.

HE-T- AF+-A=t+-HILFE

KHEFEERE (@)

At

M

RBSBEIERERAGEERSE
REFSMPELLIRT - IRIERE
B RIBHREIRE - RELERE
FERRS  BEEESF  REBENUR
B - RIEE SR BN B
WK HER-_ZE—RENAZTHH
B EFEH3,311,461,0008 7T ©

EBREEGEEFERARIERERE
REERS  RHEBE  WERE -
SELEERMERLMER - RIB
HEMMT NP BEHE  ER-F
—RETZA=ST - HRNEEFED
933,287,000/ 7T, ©

EBEAREEXEBEERARETERE
BRBHRE T RS - SUSERS
MRIERSE RIS EBARATPBENE
FREBEIING MEEREMER
AR 7% o AR IR H &3 B 1) 2 60 BF 75 3R
X HEHR-_Z—XF+=-A=+—8
HY & R {E49633,700,000/8 7T °

BMAERBERARNIERENKE
B MERE  REESBREMY
e IRBE I ATIEMM B ®wEK -
HR-Z—RE+-A=+—HBHHE
EFEX2,791,417,000/8 7T °

TEEEMREEERAREIENS
BRERNMHEEHRIAMROR
EoWE AENMEE REHER
MHATIBEOTBEHRER AR T —
RETZA=ZT—HHNEEFED
1,193,412,000/8 7T °

FREBERAAEIEREZTLHE
ZE s EBBRYWEESTIHES W
& - IRIEFE ST BT B R K
HER-—ZE—RFE+-A=+—HMH%E
IR E#X)2,921,227,000/8 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
T-RE+-A=T—HLFE

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

HE—
28.

Annual Report 2016

@)

Enerchina Holdings Ltd is principally engaged in
investment holdings, provision of securities brokerage
services, placing & underwriting, corporate finance
advisory, trading & investment of securities, provision
of margin financing, money lending, investment
advisory & management. According to its latest
published financial statements, it had net asset value
of approximately HK$4,601,716,000 as at 31 December
2016.

Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd is principally engaged in
provision of corporate and personal deposits, loans
and advances, settlement, treasury business and other
banking services. According to its latest published
financial statements, it had net asset value of
approximately RMB46,374,626,000 as at 31 December
2016.

EPI (Holdings) Ltd is principally engaged in petroleum
exploration and production. According to its latest
published financial statements, it had net asset value
of approximately HK$345,842,000 as at 31 December
2016.

Auto Italia Holdings Ltd is principally engaged in
import, marketing and distribution of luxury and ultra-
luxury cars. According to its latest published financial
statements, it had net asset value of approximately
HK$398,756,000 as at 31 December 2016.

IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

28. BEEERE &)

7

(%)

REEZERBRAREIZNERER
B RREEARELIRTS - REREH -
rEMERR  BHFEEMRE - R=H
RESHE - WE - REBRENER
RIFEST T ENPFHRE - AR =
EREtTA=+—HERNEEFED
4,601,716,000/& 7T °

BRI AR AR EERERMHLD
ARTEFER  EFRMEBR - X4
8 BB REMRITER - RIFE
RITHTIEMBRE - HR=_F—X
FT-A=T—HENEEFENARKE
46,374,626,0007T °

REEE (25k) ERAREENER
SHENR R A E o IRIEESRITEA TR AT
Bk HR-_Z—XRF+_A=+—
H #)& 7R E 49345,842,000/8 7T ©

BEMERBRARE2HED T
SHEMDHSRENBRFEE - R
BHRTHTIENMEERER  ERN-F
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash include short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less. The bank balances carry interest at market rates
which are as follows:

29.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
RITHEBRRRE
RITEBEIRSBRERINBER=1EA
AT Z R ESRIT R - I I5 M K5t
BZIRITHERAT

2016
=~

2015
—E—RF

FHRREE :
RITHEER

Range of interest rate per annum:
Bank balances

0.001% 0.001% to 0.65%

At the end of the reporting period, included in bank
balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.

RBEHR RITEHREBEEBEAT
NEBEBEERNEGSBEAIINERE
ZEH e

2016 2015
—E-AF —

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

usD x5t 606 29,281
EUR (e 104 109

2016 F3f BHERZERARAF
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NOTES

TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. KA
Nominal Number Share
value of shares capital
HE BROHE [N
HK$ ’000 HK$°000
BT Fhg FEIT
Authorised: VETE ¢
At 1 January 2015, 31 December W_ZE—HF—A
2015 and 1 January 2016 —B-—ZE—RE
+ZA=+—8K
ZE-RFE—A
—H 0.001 1,000,000,000 1,000,000
Share consolidation (Note b) &0t (Hfatb) (800,000,000) -
At 31 December 2016 R-E—-XE+=A
=+—H 0.005 200,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December WR—-Z—HF— A
2015 and 1 January 2016 —H - —ZE—FHF
+ZA=+—8K
—E-REFE—A
—H 0.001 9,968,812 9,969
Issued of new shares (Note a) BT (Mfata) 0.001 1,900,000 1,900
Exercised of share options TR A 0.001 765,000 765
12,633,812 12,634
Share consolidation (Note b) R &t (KMaEb) (10,107,050) -
0.005 2,526,762 12,634
Placing of shares (Note c) B & B (HfaFe) 0.005 505,353 2,527
Open offer (Note d) NFEE (Hitd) 0.005 1,516,058 7,580
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+A
=+—H 0.005 4,548,173 22,741
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@

Pursuant to the share swap agreement dated 29
February 2016, 1,900,000,000 ordinary shares were
allotted at HK$0.09 per share, which approximated
the closing bid price of the Company’s shares at the
completion date of the share swap, and issued to
Murtsa Capital Management Limited (“Murtsa”) in
exchange for 455,500,000 shares of HengTen Networks
Group Limited held by Murtsa on 8 March 2016. Such
shares are recorded as held-for-trading investments.
HengTen Networks Group Limited is principally
engaged in the business of property investment,
investment in securities trading and money-lending
and manufacturing and sales of accessories for
photographic and electrical products. Details of the
shares swap were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 February 2016.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
shareholders at the special general meeting held on
30 May 2016, the share consolidation of every five
issued and unissued shares of HK$0.001 each into
one consolidated share of HK$0.005 each became
effective on 31 May 2016 (the “Share Consolidation
1”). Details of the Share Consolidation | were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 3 May 2016
and the circular dated 13 May 2016.

On 30 June 2016, the Company allotted and issued
an aggregate of 505,352,508 shares by way of placing
to independent investors at a price of HK$0.23 per
share.

On 26 August 2016, the Company allotted and issued
1,516,057,526 ordinary shares at HK$0.185 per share
for cash as a result of the open offer on the basis of
one offer share for every two shares held by qualifying
shareholders as defined in the circular dated 5 August
2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T- AF+-A=t+-HILFE

30. B’& (&)

fifat -

(@)

BEBHA-_ZT—X"F_A=-1+AN
BrzBBR#Hea R_T—A~F=A
J\ B - 1,900,000,000/% & & A% 1%

1%0.097% JT( Hd# A% 52 Ak B AR 2 A
BOMKRTHRERE)BLERETT
Murtsa Capital Management Limited
([Murtsal) - A &2 #Murtsals & &
455,500,000/% 18 & 484 & B A PR A 7
Bfp ZEROERFIEEEREA
K- BREREBERAREZREY
¥RE REEHEES EHE LA
15 N SHE FRAREE ML 4 2575 - AR BV
BHERARBBRA-_ZE—RFA
—thBzR%-

RERRR-_F-—R"FAA=THE
TR IR LRBN B BRE
£ BHREREEC.COTETHE %
TRARBETERNDEH A —REREE
0.0057& TTH) B fn ([ B fn & BF— DR
TE-RFRA=tT-BAER-KH
AU —HNHBEREARREHR-F
—RFRAAZAZAERAHR-ZF
—RNFREAT=RZEX-

RZZE—ARFNA=+H  KXRRBE
BIZFR0.23BIL 2 BB A
HheE Mg 3 k#7174 505,352,508
BeR& s o

HRIZEERRR(EERAH A
E-XRENARHZBR)BHEW
AR DR —RBEERD < EEET
AABE RZT—X"FNAZ+AX
B ANRFI%ZE0.185/8 T2 (B HED
B N %5171,516,057,526 % &3 A%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

31.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 17 December 2015 and 23 February 2016, the
Board has not been able to contact Mr. Shan, Ms.
Zhang and Mr. Wen (collectively the “Three Directors”)
since November 2015, January 2016 and November
2015, respectively and they were the only two
executive directors and one of the non-executive
directors of the Company at the material time during
the year ended 31 December 2015. In making their
judgement, the Board, taking into account the legal
opinion as advised by the Group’s legal advisor, and
the results from the following assessment, considered
that other than those relating to Xiamen Sunflower,
all liabilities, both actual and contingent, of the Group
have been properly recorded, accounted for or
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015:

(a) In reviewing all board minutes at the material
time, the Board has not noticed any contracts
and agreements that have not been recorded
or disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements;

(b) Other than those already been notified to the
Board, the company secretary of the Company,
who is the custodian of the company chops
and seals of all entities within Group other than
Xiamen Sunflower and an insignificant subsidiary
in the Netherlands (the “Netherlands Subsidiary”),
has confirmed to the Board that there is no
other incident on the usage of company chops
and seals of these entities within the Group by
the Three Directors at the material time. The
Board also reviewed all agreements and
contracts provided by the sole corporate
nominee director of the Netherlands Subsidiary,
who were instructed to sign at the material time
and no irregularities was noted;

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) Since the announcement dated 17 December
2015 made by the Company in relation to,
among others, the absence of attendance of
board meetings by the Three Directors and the
various governance issues, and the further
announcement by the Company dated 23
February 2016 to put the Three Directors into
compulsory administrative leave with the
suspension of their authorities as directors, the
Board has not been approached or notified by
any parties for any potential claims, disputes
or lawsuits in relation to unrecorded liabilities
or commitments made by the Three Directors
on behalf of the Group; and

(d) Based on the investigation carried out by an
independent firm of forensic accounting
specialists appointed by the Board, there is no
evidence of any agreements, guarantees or
commitments being made by the Three Directors
on behalf of the Company which have not been
brought to the attention of the Board.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

On 16 August 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to employees, executives or officers,
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and any business consultants, agents, legal or
financial advisers or any supplier or provider of goods
and services of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(the “Participants”) for their contribution to the Group
(the “2002 Scheme”).

31.

32.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The 2002 Scheme was terminated on 11 June 2012
and a new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholder of the Company on
the same date. All share option granted under 2002
Scheme remain effective until the end of the exercise
period. The general terms and conditions of the two
share option schemes are the same and listed as
follow:

The directors of the Company may grant options to
the Participants to subscribe for shares in the
Company for a consideration of HK$10 for each lot
of share options granted. Options granted must be
taken up within 28 days of date of grant. The exercise
price is determined by the directors and shall not be
less than the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant which must
be a business day;

(ii) the average of the official closing prices of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a share.
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The maximum number of shares in the Company in
respect of which options may be granted under the
2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme when aggregated
with any other share option scheme of the Company
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 16 August 2002 and
11 June 2012 respectively. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting
and such other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time, the directors of the
Company may refresh the limit at any time to 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the date
of approval by the shareholders of the Company in
general meetings. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company at any
time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

No option may be granted to any person if the total
number of shares of the Company already issued and
issuable to him under all the options granted to him
in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of grant exceeding 1% of total number of shares in
issue at the date of grant.

32.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders
in general meetings, with such Participant and his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining
from voting and/or other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules from time to time. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

There is no specific requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the directors of the Company are
empowered to impose at their discretion any such
minimum period at the time of grant of any particular
options. The period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the directors at their
absolute discretion, save that no option may be
exercised more than 10 years from the date of grant.

The following table discloses movements of the share
options held by directors and employees:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 32. URGNRRZ &)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-F-—"F+-A=+-BHLFE
2012 Scheme —E-—F5tE
Outstanding
and Exercise
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Adjusted for Adjusted for exercisable at price as at
Vesting at 1 January during  during the the Share the 31 December 31 December
Grant date period Exercisable Period 2016 the year year Consolidation ~ Open Offer 2016 2016
R=8-AE
W=B-A§- TZRZT-B RIB-RE
B-B FROAMEST ROMBEES  HAME TZAZT-H
RLAS BRE TOEEE BRATR  REARE  RERTE ELS A2 RAUGE kR
(Note &) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Hiita) (Hb) (i)
Directors 13May 2016 NA 13 May 2016 to 12 May 2021 - 287,018,072 - (189,614,458 5,024,783 52,428,397 HK 32.5 cents
B2 ZE-AFRR MER Z3-hERATZEE 25
1=H ZFC-FRATZA
Employees 5 February 2016 N/A 5 February 2016 to 4 February 2021 - 180,000,000 (180,000,000 - - - N/A
2 ZE-ECARR AR ZE-7ECARRE TER
i Ju 12
23 February 2016 N/A 23 February 2016 to 22 February 2021 - 225,000,000 (225,000,000) - - - N/A
Z5-7EZR MR ZT-EZR-TERE AER
—t=8 “E--%-F-t-H
29 February 2016 N/A 29 February 2016 to 28 February 2021 - 60,000,000  (60,000,000) - - - N/A
Z5-RECf TR ZE-AECACtARE el
Zthe ZE-EZAZT/E
31 August 2016 N/A 31 August 2016 to 30 August 2021 - 84,000,000 - - - 84,000,000 HK 20.3 cents
Z3AENE S OTMER ZEREMNACT-RE 20375
=+-A “3Z-EN\A=1H
Other than 5 February 2016 N/A 5 February 2016 to 4 February 2021 - 180,000,000  (180,000,000) - - - N/A
employees  ~S—"E-ARE TR —E-RECARAZ TER
and directors ZSI-ECAmA
U#EERES
29 February 2016 N/A 29 February 2016 to 28 February 2021 - 120,000,000 (120,000,000) - - - N/A
Z3-75ZR MER ZE-EZACThEE TER
Zthe “RC-ECRZT)E
31 August 2016~ /A 31 August 2016 to 30 August 2021 - 168,676,254 - - - 168,676,254 HK 20.3 cents
ZERENA MER ZE-nENAZT-BEE 235
=1-8 Z52-F/\A=1H
- 1254,694,326  (765,000,000) (189,614,458) 5,024,783 305,104,651

2016 i EHEEZERER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_Z—AF+_A=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015
2002 Scheme

DURBNRRS (@)

BE-S-AFT=A=f-ALFE
sT=FiE

Outstanding
and
Fair value of Outstanding Forfeited  exercisable at
share option at 1 January during the 31 December
Grant date Vesting period at grant date 2015 year 2015
R-E-1F
REHANZ  R-B-1fF tZA=t-H
REHAH RS BREATE -A-RHAGE ERRY HAGTRRATE
HK$ (Note d)
AT (Hritd)
Former employee 21 August 2009 21/8/2009 to 30/9/2010 0.144 417,160 (417,160) -
S ZEENENA ZEENENAZT-HE
Zt+-H ZE-FENA=TH
Notes: [t et
(@)  The share options granted during the current year @) RANF R IR B D RIR B

vested on the date of grant.

(b) The number of share options was adjusted by the
Share Consolidation | on 31 May 2016.

(c) The number of share options was adjusted by the
Open Offer on 29 August 2016.

(d) 417,160 share options were lapsed due to expiration
of exercisable period.

The adjusted closing price of the Company’s shares,
before adjusting the effect of the Share Consolidation
and Open Offer, immediate before 5 February 2016,
23 February 2016, 29 February 2016, 13 May 2016
and 31 August 2016, dates of grants, were HK10.20
cents, HK10.00 cents, HK9.70 cents and HK7.20
cents and HK20.30 cents, respectively.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were during the year exercised was HK$3.609
(adjusted for Share Consolidation | and Il and Open
Offer) (2015: not applicable) (note 30 and 39).
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BE -

(b) BREHER - ZT—RNFRA=T—
E.HX1\/\@F ﬁﬁuﬂ%

() @%HQTEE“%(E “E-RFNAZTA
NEEEMAE

(d) 417,16017 B A4 A ] 17 BRI fE i o
e

ERAERGEHERAREENTER
PIN/N kammﬂﬂWmF\A&Wﬁ

B -_Z—X"HF-_ARB - ZZE—RF
_)EJ ‘f’ H- 7’ /\¢ )EJ “f’j'L
H - —E—XFRA+=ZBEZ
FNA=F— Em%ﬁﬂ%%mﬁ ol
£10.20781L +10.0071L 9.707 1L 7.20
AL %2 20,3058 1l

FREEBRETEBHINARRRKRS
Y N S5 UL T (B 53.60978 7T (B i IR
BEF—R-URAHAZEEERAE)
ZE—RF  TNEA)(HFF30&39)-°



32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YR E R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 32. LIRBNRRES @)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the TREBEAXRGEEREATEZR
fair values of share options: B

5 February 2016 23 February 2016 29 February 2016 13 May 2016 31 August 2016

BN “E-F ZE-5F1R e S
“E-E-ATE —A-t=R “A-thA T=H NA=1-H
Fair value at measurement date =M £ RHHATE HK4.605 cents HK4.506 cents HK4.303 cents HK3.357 cents HK9.288 cents

460571l 450671l 43037l 33577 9.2887% 1

Grant date share price Rt ABRE HK10.10 cents HK9.90 cents HK9.50 cents HK6.80 cents HK20.3 cents
101071 9.907%1L 9.507%1L 6.8071L 20,371
Exercise price (Note) @) HK10.18 cents ~ HK10.00 cents ~ HK9.72 cents  HK7.20 cents  HK20.3 cents
10.187 1L 10,0071l 9.727(L 7.207(L 20,371
Expected life B 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years
5% 5F 5F 5% 5%
Expected volatiity Bk 67.47% 67.46% 67.46% 67.23% 67.37%
Dividend yield ReuEE 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate BREBTR 1.211% 1.078% 0.989% 0.891% 1.396%
Note: Hier -
The exercise price of the share options granted on 13 May R-E-—ARFRAAT=ARENBEREZ1TE
2016 was adjusted from HK7.2 cents to HK36 cents due to B ERGEHF—mRZE—"FRA=1T—
the Share Consolidation | on 31 May 2016 and the exercise H 7. 2811 RI6E - TR ERAREE
price was then adjusted to HK32.50 cents as a result of the MR =ZE—R"FENAZ+NAFEAEI2.50%8
of the Open Offer on 29 August 2016 and further adjusted i YEABOHaH —MR_FT—tF=A+=
to HK$2.6 as a result of the Share Consolidation Il on 13 HiE— AR R2.6B T (MFE39) R =T —X
March 2017 (note 39). The exercise price of the share options FNAA=T-BRONBREZTEE B
granted on 31 August 2016 was adjusted from HK20.3 cents MEHZMRZE—tF=A+=HAE203%
to HK$1.624 as a result of the Share Consolidation Il on 13 L3 A1.624 87T (H15E39)-

March 2017 (note 39).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Note: (continued)

The share options granted on 5 February 2016, 23 February
2016 and 29 February 2016 were fully exercised before the
Share Consolidation | and Il (notes 30 and 39).

The fair value for the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2016 of HK$65,726,000 were calculated
by Assets Appraised Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers. The Binomial model has been used to
estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. Changes
in variables and assumptions may result in changes in fair
value of the share options.

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in
the grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share option grants.
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32.

LRGBRRRS &)
M o ()

RZE—R"F_ARB - ZZT—XF=A
Z+=ARZE-ARFZ_AZTHhLEEHD
B R DA O — R pEREITE (M
E30/39)°

HE-Z—XR"E+_A=+ALFEERHN
B AE 2 2 F{E 565,726,000 7T © JhH B
VAHEBEREBEEGERMAssets Appraised
Limitedzt & - Bl A FEHEARZIER
REVEET - ARGTEEREATEZ S RE
BRIRBEE 2 REMFTMEL - FERER
2 BB A AL E BB R A T EEE) o

T8 HA R R X T SRR R (R X B A A Y
ST FHOHREAE) YERARERF
RIOKEE R TR CEH AR - =
B ABEBERENEF A EH L FER
FHERER TN E -
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
in respect of rented premises were approximately
HK$4,031,000 (2015: HK$1,917,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under a non-cancellable operating lease which fall
due as follows:

33.

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"FT+_A=+—HILFE
EEHERIE
AEBEREBEA
REBELERANRHEEMEZNT 2 &IER
© 49 /4,031,000 T( —ZF — A F :
1,917,000/ 7T ) °

RIS IR - RIET TR ERL - A
£ 8 % (R RIS © 2 AR B B3
R :

2016 2015

—E-AF —

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Within one year —F A 3,721 2,558
After one year but within five years —FR&RENRAFR 853 3,411
4,574 5,969

The Group is the lessee in respect of two office
premises. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 to 3 years, with an option to renew the leases
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

AEERMERRYEZAEA AL
—RNL RENE3F A EBESHE
BB GRREEY SERDEREAA
HeE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEZZT—RFT+A=1T—HILFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all its qualifying
employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of
HK$354,000 (2015: HK$40,000) represents contribution
payable to the plan by the Group at rate specified in
the rules of the plan.

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

34.

35.

RIKERIGE

AR BRI R B RTE 2 5 BRI P
EEBRERMEERYLBRESFE - /A
BUEFEAZES T RESFENEE
EAEERFANESEDRN - RIER
BastdmBRA BEREREHEAES
B Mz At SRR AR E 2 L R 5K K
SE BB S NE-FERRE
S PR G -

RIBZF R IR 2 4251 X A354,00058 7T
(ZZ—F%F 40,0008 7C) JH1EHK A
STEIFTAIRR 2 R E 2 A EE A

BT

BEEALRS

FTEEE A SR

FR EERHMTEERAS M
m -

2016 2015

—g-AE e

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T#ET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 7,647 2,145

Contributions to pension schemes ER& B 153 18
Equity-settled share-based payment AfEa#sE 2 B S

expenses ofgus] 30,444 _

38,244 2,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. HE—EHELT
On 8 August 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the RZE—RENANB XRF—fH2
Company (“the Vendor”) entered into a sale and BWMBARI(IESE-—2BIE=
purchase agreement with an independent third party TEFDIIA—HEEWH:S:E Bt &
(“the Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Vendor has FEEBRMHRAZHEME HE A IEHER
conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser has E 8 E {8 2 FCicero Capital Ltd.
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire 100% #1100% iz # - 3R & X (& /128,000,000
equity interest in its subsidiary, Cicero Capital Ltd., BT - ZEBEER -_ZT—R"F+A+=
for a cash consideration of HK$128,000,000. The BHEX REEBBHNBERARZEETF
disposal was completed on 12 October 2016. The BT :
net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal
were as follows:
2016
—E-RE
HK$°000
FET
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment LERN NS 95,732
Prepayment and deposits FENRIERIES 99
95,831
Total consideration wRE 128,000
Expenses paid in connection with the #HEEE 2
disposal (16)
Net assets disposal of HEZEEFE (95,831)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B LR 2 e 32,153
Satisfied by: BRIATER -
Cash Be 128,000
Analysis of the net inflow of cash and FtHE—FEMEAR RS MRS HEEHR
cash equivalents in respect of ZMAFREDHT
disposal of a subsidiary:
Cash BE 128,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. AQRHBEMRRREHE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-XKE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Non-current assets FREBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - BB M&E 2,085 -
Interest in a joint venture R—EEeErEERE 142,689 -
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZIEE 26,656 -
Club debenture BHRES 1,300 1,300
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE LS BB A R RIE 705,375 257,244
878,105 258,544

Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments = {th & R IE K FEAS 50 2,636 1,208
Amount due from a joint venture JEW —FEl & &b KA 71 -
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS LR 239,887 584,505
242,594 585,713

Current liability REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hi e RIE R BT E R 5,281 3,764
5,281 3,764
Net current assets mEE EFE 237,313 581,949
Total assets less current liability mEERRBAE 1,115,418 840,493

Capital and reserves EXR#HE

Share capital N 22,741 9,969
Reserves & 1,092,677 830,524
1,115,418 840,493
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

37. ARRQBMBEARRRKREE @)

Movement of the Company’s reserve RATRBRECEE
Share
Contributed option Accumulated
surplus reserve losses Total
BEREs BRERE 2T BB @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET AT FET FET
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—1%—A—-8 1,039,140 144 (129,351) 909,933
Loss for the year FAE#E - - (79,409) (79,409)
Share options forfeited R B i - (144) 144 _
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AF+=A
=+—H 1,039,140 - (208,616) 830,524
Loss for the year FREE - - (424,637 (424,637
Equity-settled share-based NEREE C RER S
transactions - 65,726 - 65,726
Exercise of share options bR E 110,342 (34,464) - 75,878
Shares issued EETRN 557,596 - - 557,596
Transaction cost attributable RO RREGER KA
to issue of new ordinary shares (12,410) - - (12,410)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"E+TZA
=+—H 1,694,668 31,262 (633,253) 1,092,677
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 38. ANTMEBARFE
THE COMPANY
The particulars of subsidiaries of the Company for HE-_Z—ARAF+_A=+—HI1t#H
the years ended 31 December 2016 are listed as B ARBEZENBARGFBNOT ¢
follows:
Place of Paid up Proportion of ownership
Name of incorporation or registration issued interest and voting power  Principal
subsidiary or operations share capital held by the Company Activities
i CEE AMBIGEEAEELE  ARCRORE  AOAIFGEERRRERMA IERE
Directly Indirectly
& ]
31 December 2016
ZE-RETZAZT-A
% %
China Resources Enterprise Ltd.  British Virgin Islands USD 1 100 - Inactive
ABRUES %71 gEeX
Comanche Limited British Virgin Islands HKS$1 100 - Intermediate holding
ABRUES 187 PMER
Dai Gor Capital Ltd. British Virgin Islands USD 1 100 - Intermediate holding
ABRUES %7 MER
Divine Kings Limited British Virgin Islands USD 1 100 - Intermediate holding
ABRUES %7 MER
Emperor Investments Limited British Virgin Islands USD 1 100 - Holding of unlisted investments
ABRUES %7 RAFLTRE
High Gear Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100  Holding of a yacht
Bk 137 RA-Bbk
Hurricane Fly Limited British Virgin Islands HK$1 100 - Intermediate holding
ABRUES 137 R
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YR E R

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE=

B NFT-A=+—HILEE

38. AQTIMBATRIFE @)

Place of Paid up Proportion of ownership
Name of incorporation or registration issued interest and voting power  Principal
subsidiary or operations share capital held by the Company Activities
WELTER AfEIAETAEELY  ARCRORE  ALAREHARRREELN IERE
Directly Indirectly
& ]
31 December 2016
Z2-R"FrZA=t-8
% %
Imagi Core Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Provision of administrative services
(30 137 RATHIRE
Imagi Character Licensing B.V. Netherlands EUR 18,100 - 100 Sub-Licensing of intellectual property
i 18,1008 rights in respect of GGI animation
pictures
R fer EE LT L
Imagi Crystal Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Holding and licensing of intellect property
EEKEERAT B 187 assets in respect of CGI animation
pictures
FREREGBBNAIERNRERTT
Imagi Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Dormant
ERERARLA B 187 IRex
Imagi Management Services British Virgin Islands HK$1 - 100 Provision of administrative services
Limited LBRAES o REAHRS
IMAGI INTERNATIONAL British Virgin Islands USD 1 100 - Dormant
HOLDINGS LIMITED ABRNES %7 Imex
Imagi Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of administrative services
ERERERLT B o REAHRS
Imagi Platinum Limited Hong Kong HKS 1 - 100 Holding and licensing of intellectual
&4 151 property assets in respect of CGl

Animation picture

RESREGHENARERNBART
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"F+-A=1+—HLLFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

38.

38. ARQTIMBATRIFE @)

Place of Paid up Proportion of ownership
Name of incorporation or registration issued interest and voting power  Principal
subsidiary or operations share capital held by the Company Activities
i R AMRIGECAEELE  ARCRORE  ALAIFGEERRRERMA IEXE
Directly Indirectly
R ]
31 December 2016
ZE-RETZAZT-A
% %
Imagi Wealth Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment in securities
SRERARLT i 147 R
Infinite Lake Limited British Virgin Islands HK$61,500,000 100 - Intermediate Holding
ZERAEE 61,500,000 ¢ PR
Intellefund Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
Bk 187 e
Macallan Fine Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$1 100 - Intermediate holding
ABRUES 1871 R
Magmagous Corporation British Virgin Islands UsD 1 100 - Inactive
ABRUES %71 TEex
Main Events Inc. British Virgin Islands UsD 1 100 - Inactive
ABRUES %71 TEex
Sky Field Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USD 1 100 - Intermediate holding
RIERARLA ABRUES %7 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YR E R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

HE—

B NFT-A=+—HILEE

38. AQTIMBATRIFE @)

Place of Paid up Proportion of ownership
Name of incorporation or registration issued interest and voting power  Principal
subsidiary or operations share capital held by the Company Activities
i R AMRUGECAEELE  ARERORE  AOAIFGEERRRERMA IERE
Directly Indirectly
& ]
31 December 2016
Z2-R"FrZA=t-8
% %
Step Goal Limited British Virgin Islands USD 1 100 - Intermediate holding
BRARAT ABRUES %71 MR
Top Gate Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands UsD 1 100 - Holding of unlisted investment
ABRUES %71 RAFLRE
Turbo Money Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands HK$31 - 100 Inactive
ABRUES 1A gEeX
Unimagi Investments (HK) Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Dormant
(30 187 IEex
Raytheon Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands USD 100 - 100  Trading of securities
ABRUES 10057 EEE5
Unimagi Investment Limited British Virgin Islands HK$750,000,000 - 100 Trading of securities
ZERAES 750,000,000 7C EEES
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt E= )= NG

securities at the end of the reporting period.

EfRER & 55

AR & B 72 A5 B A 4B 31T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEZZT—RFT+A=1T—HILFE

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group also has the following
significant subsequent events after the end of the
reporting period:

(i) Share swap between the Company and
Enerchina Holdings Limited (“Enerchina®)
On 16 March 2017, the Company and Enerchina,
a public limited company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company and its
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
entered into a shares swap agreement (the
“Share Swap Agreement”) pursuant to which,
subject to the fulfillment of certain conditions,
the parties have agreed amongst other things
that the Company will issue and allot
113,400,000 shares representing approximately
19.69% of the existing issued capital of the
Company as at 16 March 2017 and approximately
16.45% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the issue, to Enerchina
in exchange for 378,000,000 shares of Enerchina
representing approximately 3.5% of the existing
issued share capital of Enerchina as at the date
of the announcement and approximately 3.38%
of the issued share capital of Enerchina as
enlarged by the issue. Enerchina was principally
engaged in investment holdings, provision of
securities brokerage services, placing and
underwriting services, provision of corporate
finance advisory services, trading and investment
of securities, provision of margin financing,
money lending services, investment advisory
and management services. The gain on the
transaction of HK$3,402,000 will be expected
to recognised in the profit or loss on the
completion date of 22 March 2017. Details of
the share swap were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 March 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR MR

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(continued)

(i)

(iif)

Acquisition of a target company

On 30 August 2016, the Company entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale &
Purchase Agreement”) with an independent
third party for the acquisition of a target
company (“Target Company”) engaging in the
securities trading business (the “Acquisition”).
The total consideration of HK$18,400,000 for
the Acquisition will be satisfied, among others,
by cash consideration of HK$6.4 million and
issuance of consideration shares of 60,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company. The Acquisition
will be carried out in accordance with the terms
and subject to the conditions under the Sale
& Purchase Agreement. The transaction was
completed on 28 February 2017.

Up to the date on the approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are still assessing the fair
values of assets and liabilities of the Target
Company to be recognised at the date of
acquisition.

As at the date of issuance of the consolidated
financial statements, the fair value assessments
of goodwill and intangible assets, if any, of
Target Company had not been finalised and
thus, the initial accounting for the aforesaid
acquisition of equity interest in Target Company
has been determined provisionally. Upon
finalisation of the valuation, goodwill arising on
acquisition may change accordingly. The
directors of the Company expect the valuation
will be finalised in year 2017.

Share consolidation

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders at the special general meeting
held on 10 March 2017, the share consolidation
of every eight issued and unissued shares of
HK$0.005 each into one consolidated share of
HK$0.04 each became effective on 13 March
2017 (the “Share Consolidation 11”). Details of
the Share Consolidation Il were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 26 January
2017 and 10 March 2017 and circular dated 22
February 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T- AF+-A=t+-HILFE

39. HEREEH @)

(i)

(iii)

WiE—EBEEAT
RZE—XENA=Z+H AR
AE—2EIE=FFIN—HE
ER(EEHE]) ARE—
MREFHFEEEKZ2BEEZER
AITERARI([WEEE]-
W g £ 18 7 42 X (518,400,000
BLTEUNEFRRRE)REENRE
6,400,000/ JT & 2 1T B R 10
(757~ &160,000,0000% & 3@ % ) %
M- WBEEBEREEH A
BAREREEIEERBTET R
SER-_Z—tF_A=-+\H
TERK ©

BERSHRAMBHRRELED
B NRREEDAENEER
BHHRINEREARNEER
BEZRAYE.

RIEEEMBRATEAH BIF
NRANEHENEREE(WE)W
NHEHADAREE - Bty - Bt
BIR QR REWE NV F S5
BREREBEE -HEEER B
WESHELNME R EARE
- ARABEFREFEERR =

T LEEE-

[gria=gtid
BEREN-_ZTE—tF=A+H
BITHBRRFI A LRB T
BAEE & /)/\RTRME{E0.005
BLZEBITRARBITRMDE
Bt AE— =R EE0.0478 T2 I
BEHER-_BE—tE=A+=
BEB(TRODEH=ZD - BRHE
HoZFBHINARBREA
—E—+tF—-HAZ+ARBAEZE
—+tF=ZAT+HERAENUKBE
BRZE—+tHF A+ =-HZ@
K o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-BA=1-HILEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—F-——-F E-=F —Z-mF =—T-HF ZZ-5xF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FET AT FET FET
Revenue gz 155,213 92,806 - - 1,132
Realised losses from sales of HEDHEABIEEER
listed equity investments TARARER
classified as held-for-trading ~ EZHEE - - - - (19,085)
155,213 92,806 - - (17,953)
(Loss) profit before tax BREEAT (B518) 8 A (105,996) (89,612) 3,455 (81,238) (417,562)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiSHEe, /(i) 14,429 67,728 - - (10,967)
(Loss) profit for the year FRER) R (91,567) (21,884) 3,455 (81,238) (428,529)
Attributable to owners of the AR FEE AEE
Company (91,567) (21,884) 3,455 (81,238) (424,549)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=A=1+-H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
- ZE-=f CE-QmF ZE-RF ZE-/%¥
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FET FET FET FET
Total assets BERE 1,193,014 926,640 923,396 845,364 1,128,205
Total liabilities BERE (245,000) (3,904) (3,042) (3,983) (17,976)
948,014 922,736 920,354 841,381 1,110,229
Equity attributable to owners of AR &IHH AL
the Company 948,014 922,736 920,354 841,381 1,110,229

Annual Report 2016 IMAGI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



VIAGL

www.imagi.com.hk




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATEINFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	PROFILE OF DIRECTORS ANDSENIOR MANAGEMENT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER

